
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 06, 2019 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting January 16, 2019. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW 

 
PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Presentation of Grant Award                Wil Sanchez 
2. Wellness Program              Tangela Whaley 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:  

The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker will have four minutes to give remarks, regardless of the number of items addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 2016-16 
for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize the issuance of blanket purchase orders.  
2. Signing of Amendment #1 to Contract #W1136 with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 
3. Authorize a replacement Purchasing Card and E-Payables Program.  
4. Approval of alcohol sales at the Apopka BBQ Showdown at the Northwest Recreation Complex on February 9th, 2019. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan and Plat – Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage                                        Jean Sanchez 
Project: Farish Enterprises, LLC  
Location: 1616 East Semoran Boulevard 
 

2. Final Development Plan/Plat – Vista Reserve                                                                     Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Pulte Home Company, LLC  
Location: East side of Rogers Road, approx. ½ mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road & Lester Road 
 

3. Ratify two agreements with Stryker and their associated expenditures.               Wil Sanchez 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2702 Second Reading - Small Scale – Future Land use Amendment         Phil Martinez 
Project: Construesse USA, Inc.  
Location: 2600 Rock Springs Road.     
 

2. Ordinance No. 2705 – Second Reading – Small Scale – Future Land Use Amendment      Phil Martinez 
Project:  William & Cecilia Uebel and Jose & Iris Acevedo  
Locations: 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 
 

3. Ordinance No. 2706 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning                                               Phil Martinez 
Project:  William & Cecilia Uebel and Jose & Iris Acevedo  
Locations: 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 
 

 

1



  
 

4. Ordinance No. 2690 – First Reading/Transmittal - Large Scale – Future Land Use Amendment               David Moon 
Project: Carrol M. Hamrick  
Location: North of West Ponkan Road, west of Mt. Sterling Avenue 
 

5. Ordinance No. 2709 – First Reading – Amendment - PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan                  Bobby Howell 
Project:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD; Florida Express Trucking, Inc.; Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC.  
Location:  West side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, and east of Hermit Smith Road  
 

6. Ordinance No. 2710 – First Reading – Vacate – Public Right-of-Way                               Jean Sanchez 
Project:  City of Apopka  
Location:  East of S.R. 414 and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2712 – First Reading - Annexation                                                              Bobby Howell 
Project: City of Apopka  
Location: 3251 Harry Street (Lift Station) 
 

8. Resolution 2019-03 - FY18/19 Budget Amendment  Jamie Roberson 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Presentation with Girl Scouts 2 troops STEM Project   Commissioner Nolan 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

1. Appointment of Kevin Becotte as the Public Services Director 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

February 8, 2019 5:00PM – 10:00PM Apopka BBQ Showdown – NW Recreation Complex 

February 9, 2019 11:00AM – 6:00PM Apopka BBQ Showdown – NW Recreation Complex 

February 12, 2019 5:30PM – 7:30PM Planning Commission 

February 16, 2019 11:00AM – 12:00PM Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

February 20, 2019 7:00PM City Council Meeting 

March 6, 2019 1:30PM City Council Meeting 

March 16, 2019 11:00AM – 12:00PM Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CIITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Bryan Nelson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Alice Nolan 

Commissioner Alexander Smith 

City Attorney Joseph Byrd 

City Administrator Edward Bass 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Doug Bankson (excused) 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Nelson called on Reverend Kelli Bankson, Victory Church, who gave 

the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Nelson introduced Student Government Student: 

Secretary Astoria Becket from Apopka High School who led in the Pledge.  She said on this day, 

January 16th1883, President Chester A. Arthur signed the Pendleton Act into law. After the 

assassination of President Garfield by a disgruntled, deranged office seeker, the act mandated that 

positions within the federal government should be awarded on the basis of merit instead of 

political affiliation. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting January 2, 2019. 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the minutes of January 2, 2019.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Becker, Smith and Nolan voting aye.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW – No changes 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Bob Stamps said he was here representing Orange Audubon Society Apopka Birding Park 

Committee. He thanked Mayor Nelson for moving forward with the cleanup and restoration of the 

Hickerson property now known as the Apopka Birding Park. He said there was a great deal of 

enthusiasm and anticipation regarding the future opening of this 69.5 acre city park, stating it is a 

unique place where people can enjoy the outdoors, hike, bike, and enjoy the wildlife. He thanked 

the Orange Audubon Society members, City Commissioners, Mayor Nelson, and the cub scouts 

and boy scouts that helped with the cleanup on the property. He stated the volunteer efforts saved 

the city and showed a great example of the community working together.  

 

3



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

CONSENT 

1. To authorize closure of roads during the Martin Luther King Jr. Parade. 

2. Authorize the issuance of blanket purchase orders.  

3. Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Bridlewood Subdivision. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to approve three 

items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson and 

Commissioners Becker, Smith and Nolan voting aye.  

 

Mayor Nelson said Commissioner Bankson is in Israel on a mission and took with him three 

shirts embroidered with the American Flat, the Israeli Flag, and on the sleeve the City of Apopka 

logo and the person’s name it was being given. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Final Development Plan–CJS Holding (Lake Gem Lot 1)  

Project:  Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper 

Location:  701 Marshall Lake Road      

 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, provided a brief lead-in reviewing the location of the project on a map and 

providing surrounding land-uses. The request is to approve the CJS Holding Final Development 

Plan. The parcel is in the Industrial Park Lake Gem Commerce Center, Lot 1.  One of the 

conditions is that each lot go through the site plan approval process. The proposed building is 

13,600 sq. ft. in size and 33 feet in height. Ingress and egress access is via Marshall Lake Road. 

There will be 32 parking spaces provided, including two handicap spaces. She reviewed the 

landscape plan. The Planning Commission recommends approval subject to the findings of the 

staff report. The recommendation is to approve the CJS Holding Final Development Plan.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public comment. No one wishing to speak he closed the 

public comment.  

 

Mayor Nelson asked that they make sure the pines proposed are not susceptible to the beetle 

destroying pine trees.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan to approve the 

Final Development Plan for CJS Holding. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson 

and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

2. Road Closures on McGee Avenue and East 6th Street 

Project:  City Center – Off-Site Road Improvements. 

Pam Richmond, Transportation Planner, reviewed the road closures on McGee Avenue and East 

6
th

 Street for the City Center road improvements. There are two closures in the packet and a third 

brought to her attention today was handed out, all related to the City Center.  McGee Avenue 

from south of the Burger King to 6
th

 Street and 6
th

 Street closures in two segments from Tilden to 

Christiana and from McGee to Tilden. These closures are necessary for the offsite roadway 

improvements while building the hotel. They are coordinating with the Police and Fire 

Departments and Public Services to minimize the inconvenience as much as possible. The third 

closure is next Tuesday from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon for the closure of East 6
th

 Street. The 

recommendation is to approve the road closures as submitted.  

4



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

In response to Mayor Nelson as to this being poste on the City’s website, Ms. Richmond 

responded in the affirmative.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve the 

road closures on McGee Avenue and East 6
th

 Street as presented. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

3. Transportation Impact Fee Update Study – Tindale Oliver 

Project:  City of Apopka 

Ms. Richmond reported that in March of last year Council approved negotiations with Tindale 

Oliver on a Transportation Fee Study update. The negotiated amount is $121,820 and they would 

request authorization for this amount in order to move forward with the study.  She affirmed this 

will be more than an impact fee update, it will also include prioritization of road improvements 

and update to the transportation element of the comprehensive plan and capital improvements 

plan.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to public comment. No one wishing to speak, he close the 

public comment.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve the 

amount of $121,820 in expenditures for Oliver Tindale to conduct the Transportation 

Impact Fee Study. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners 

Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

Commissioner Becker said it was worth noting that the City did amount $1.7 million in 

Transportation Impact Fees in 2017. He stated to spend $122,000 to get us to a level where we 

can potentially be where we should be and what we stand to gain. 

 

4. Authorize the agreement and associated expenditure for Axon Enterprises, Inc. 

Deputy Chief Fernandez said they had discussed the purchase of Tasers during the prior budget 

and it was decided to replace the Tasers through a five-year agreement, spreading the payments 

out. The first year was funded and last October it was determined this did not need to come back 

to Council. However, when they received the second year’s payment it was discovered that the 

capital lease had not been placed on the books. They are back for transparency to make sure 

Council knows and understands what this covers.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan to authorize the 

agreement and associated expenditure for Axon Enterprises, Inc. for Tasers. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2699 - Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Overlay District Master Plan 

Project:  Orlando Beltway West Parcel 

Location: 5401 Effie Drive 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

5



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2699 

 

AN ORDINANDE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” KELLY PARK 

INTERCHANGE MIXED-USE (KPI-MU), AND ASSIGNING A KELLY 

PARK CROSSING EMPLOYMENT MEDTECH CAMPUS OVERLAY 

DISTRICT, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF STATE ROAD 429 AND EAST OF EFFIE DRIVE, 

SPECIFICALLY LOCATED AT 5401 EFFIE DRIVE, COMPRISING 51.0  

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY ORLANDO BELTWAY 

ASSOCIATES; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Bobby Howell, Senior Planner, said there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2699. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2707 – Second Reading - Annexation 

Project: Ramjit Bhoodram Life Estate, Ramjit Ethel R Life Estate, Rem: Ramjit Family Trust   

Location: 2378 Marden Road 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2707 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUTATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY RAMJIT BHOODRAM LIFE ESTATE, RAMJIT ETHEL R. 

LIFE ESTATE, REM: RAMJIT FAMILY TRUST: LOCATED AT 2378 

MARDEN ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Howell said there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2707. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

6



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2702 – First Reading - Small Scale – Future Land Use Amendment 

Project: Construesse USA, Inc.  

Location: 2600 Rock Springs Road.     

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2702 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH 

OF WEKIVA POINTE CIRCLE AND WEST OF ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, 

COMPRISING 9.59 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY 

CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Phil Martinez, Planner, provided a brief lead-in for the project, reviewing the location on an 

aerial map and surrounding uses. The subject property annexed on October 17, 2018, and is 

waiting an application for city zoning. On January 8, 1=2019, the Planning Commission found 

the proposed future land-use amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan and 

recommended approval.  The recommendation is to accept Ordinance 2702 at first reading and 

carry it over for second reading and adoption.  

 

Montaz Barq, Terra-Max Engineering, representing the applicant said they agreed with the 

staff report and were present to answer any questions. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2702 for first reading and carry over for a second reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan 

voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2705 – First Reading – Small Scale – Future Land Use Amendment 

Project:  William & Cecilia Uebel and Jose & Iris Acevedo  

Locations: 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2705 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE AOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ESIGNATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO 

7



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC) FORE CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF W. KELLY PARK ROAD 

AND WEST OF MT. PLYMOUTH ROAD, COMPRISING 1.36 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL 

AND JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIE DATE. 

 

Mr. Martinez said the applicant was proposing a small-scale future land-use amendment from 

Commercial to Residential very low suburban. He reviewed the location of the property and 

surrounding uses on an aerial map. The intent is to create a legal conforming use for the 

houses on the property. The property is currently zoned C-1 with an application for rezoning 

to R-1 to be covered in the next agenda item. The Planning Commission recommends 

approval. The recommendation is to accept Ordinance 2705 at first reading and carry over for 

a second reading and adoption.  

 

Denny Shiver with Lou Haubner Realty is representing the applicants said he was present to 

answer any questions.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2705 at first reading and carry over for a second reading. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting 

aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2706 – First Reading - Change of Zoning 

Project:  William & Cecilia Uebel and Jose & Iris Acevedo  

Locations: 355, 363, and 371 West Kelly Park Road. 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2706 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM C-1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) TO R-1 

(SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST KELLY PARK ROAD AND 

WEST OF MT. PLYMOUTH ROAD, COMPRISING 1.36 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY WILLIAM & CECILLIA UEBEL AND 

JOSE & IRIS ACEFEDO PROVING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Martinez said the applicant is proposing zoning from C-1 to R-1 for the same property as 

the previous agenda item. The finding are the same as previously reviewed. The proposed R-1 

zoning is compatible with the proposed Residential very low suburban land-use. The Planning 

Commission recommends approval. The recommendation is to accept Ordinance 2706 at first 

reading and carry it over for second reading and adoption.  

8



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan to approve 

Ordinance No. 2706 and at first reading carry over for a second reading. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting 

aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2700 – First Reading – Land Development Code Update   

Project:  City of Apopka 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2700 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, ADOPTING 

AND ENACTING A NEW CODE FOR THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 

CODE, PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES 

OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; 

PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH CODE; AND 

PROVIDING WHEN SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

 

Jim Hitt, Community Development Director, said they have been working on the rewrite of 

the Land Development Code (LDC) for close to two years. This is the first complete rewrite 

of the Land Development Code. He advised there were carryovers from the previous code, but 

as discussed and reviewed in joint meetings there have been numerous amendments. The 

primary concern is to make the code more user friendly with more diagrams added and more 

explanations. The RFQ was awarded to Clarion and Associates in December 2017.  Since then 

there have been several joint meetings with Council and the Planning Commission. He 

reviewed some of the highlights such as: new graphics have been added; incorporated the 

Design Guidelines and Form Base Code; they have consolidated some of the zoning 

categories and added some new categories; consolidation of the downtown area; consolidated 

the mixed-use districts in one area; restructured the approval process for developments 

making them easier to follow and shorten the timeframe for review; added a new complete 

streets section; updated parking regulations; and added a new airport district and regulation 

maps.  He reviewed the zoning districts and the recommended square footage in the new 

LDC. Planning Commission recommended approval with the inclusion of ADA language 

regarding van accessible parking spaces. He advised that staff recommends deleting the Small 

Lot Overlay district. If someone desires this type of development, a PD can be applied for and 

go through that process.  

 

Craig Richardson, Clarion and Associates, provided a presentation high lighting key points in 

the new Land Development Code. He said there has been a reorganization of the document 

making it more logical in terms of structure. He said there are ten articles and it is organized 

with the permitting applications all in Article 2, zoning districts and use regulations are in 

Articles 3 & 4, and then all of the development standards are together in Articles 5 & 6. He 

9



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

went on highlighting areas and pointed out that the official zoning district map is in Article 1. 

The end of Article 1 contains the transition from the existing code to the new Land 

Development Code. This transition area also allows for an applicant that applied under the old 

code may continue under the old code. However, a provision provides for the applicant to 

withdraw and submit under the new code if they desire. Any existing development approvals 

will be recognized as legitimate and may proceed with the terms and conditions of that 

approval. He advised Article 2 consolidates all the development review procedures. In the 

beginning of this article, there is a summary table for the review process.  The new code has a 

set of standard procedures that apply to all development applications. The final section deals 

with the individual development applications. They have modernized and streamlined the 

Planned Development (PD) procedure making it more user friendly. The new code allows 

minor Planned Developments to be reviewed and decided by the Development Review 

Committee. He pointed out that threshold levels have been increased so that a major PD is 300 

residential units, as well as increasing the nonresidential standards. An administrative 

adjustment provision has been added as discussed at the joint workshop. This provision allows 

for minor modifications, subject to review criteria. He pointed out that there has been 

consolidation of districts that were similar, and created a residential mixed-use district. He 

spoke of graphics and photographs making the new code more user friendly. He spoke of the 

downtown and how many of the provisions were consolidated and created a downtown that 

supports more walkable development and more flexibility. They carried forward the Kelly 

Park Form Base Code and drafted provisions for the east shore. Use regulations were 

consolidated into a table in Article 4 that organizes and identifies each of the uses and districts 

where they are permitted. He said there was a parking standard table that can be utilized to 

determine the parking standards for the development. There were two sets of parking 

standards that he reviewed. He stated landscaping and buffering have been modernized and 

they have added foundation-planting standards, plant diversity requirements, and the water 

wise standards were carried forward. There is more flexibility with the buffering standards 

and options available. He advised most open space standards exceed or are equal to the 

current requirements. They have added neighborhood compatibility standards. There are also 

green building standards that can be utilized.  

 

Commissioner Becker said the Planning Commission has one recommendation regarding 

accessible parking and asked if this was the only formal recommendation. 

 

Mr. Hitt responded in the affirmative. 

 

Commissioner Becker asked what this would look like once it is codified, to which Mr. 

Richardson said they have discussed codification of this document with Municode and they 

can translate around 90% of the graphics in Municode.  

 

Commissioner Becker asked what happens when there are conflicts with definitions of like 

terms elsewhere in our ordinances to which Mr. Richardson said the definitions in the Land 

Development Code are the definitions that will be utilized in the LDC. He stated the most 

restrictive provision would prevail, whether in the LDC, Statutes, or other Ordinance.  

 

Commissioner Becker advised an email was received from Derek Ryan regarding landscaping 

concerns. He asked if they had input from landscaping experts so that they feel confident the 

10



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

LDC landscaping code will hold up. He also stated he felt 300 was a high threshold before a 

major development is brought before Council.  

 

Commissioner Nolan agreed this was a large threshold and said citizens like that these come 

to Council and held accountable. She stated Council needs to continue having a say in these 

developments.  

 

Discussion was also held regarding a small lot zoning district and Council having the 

flexibility of deciding what is right for the City. It was the consensus that 50 residential lots or 

more and 50,000 square feet or more for commercial come before Council. 

 

Mayor Nelson suggested pushing the second reading out to the second meeting in February in 

order to allow time to review and make the suggested amendments.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan,, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2700 and carry over for a second reading on February 20, 2019 with the 

following amendments: residential 50 lots or more and 50,000 sq. ft. for commercial has 

to come before Council; add permit uses for marijuana, remove small lot district and 

small lot overlay district, change square footage for residential, and add service repair 

shops. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, 

Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

7. Resolution 2019-02 - FY18/19 Budget Amendment 

The City Attorney read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019, 

PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET AMENDMENT. 

 

Jamie Roberson, Finance Director, reviewed the budget amendments to the FY 18/19 Budget. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve 

Resolution No. 2019-02. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

Mayor Nelson said Tangela Whaley brought to his attention that some municipalities are waiving 

fines and late fees and arranging payments for utility billing for Federal employees with the 

government shutdown.  Ms. Roberson advised we already have policies in place for payment 

arrangements. She said they could research this further with regard to late fees. Commissioner 

11



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on January 16, 2019, 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

Nolan said Soccer enrollment was going on and suggested taking it a step further and look into 

working with Federal employees with regard to Parks and Recreation programs.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to work with 

Federal employees to waive any fines and work on payments for utility billing and Parks 

and Recreation programs as discussed.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, 

and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – City Clerk Goff reported that Susan Bone, Deputy 

City Clerk, has earned the designation of Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC), awarded by the 

International Institute of Municipal Clerks after three or more years of taking continuing 

education classes.  

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Nolan reported the Apopka Historical Society will be holding a meeting on 

January 27
th

 at 2:00 p.m. at the Museum and they will be discussing what they will be doing this 

upcoming year.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT  

 

1.  Appointment of Vice Mayor Bankson as the alternate MetroPlan Member. 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to appoint 

Vice Mayor Bankson as the alternate MetroPlan member. Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye.  

 

Mayor Nelson reported starting next month disbursements will be part of the consent agenda. 

He also reported on January 26, 2019, the City of Apopka would partner with Orange County 

distributing Bear Carts in front of the old Albertson’s from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. They will 

also have information regarding recycling.  

 

Commissioner Nolan reminded everyone of the Martin Luther King Parade on Monday.  

 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m.  

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

 
_______________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

12



Office of Medical Director, Orange County EMS 
2002-A East Michigan Street, Orlando, Florida  32806 

Telephone (407) 836-8960 ◘ Fax (407) 836-7625 

 

 

January 14, 2019 

 

 

Captain Wil Sanchez 

City of Apopka Fire Department 

175 East 5th Street 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

Dear Captain Sanchez: 

 

The Orange County EMS Advisory Council and the EMS Finance Committee would like to 

congratulate you on the award of the EMS County Grant in the amount of $32,702.25 for  

(1) LIFEPAK Monitor and accessories for the Apopka Fire Department and the County-

wide EMS system. 

 

The decision was based on a standard criteria and scoring process that was applied equally 

to all applicants. The Orange County EMS Finance Committee will oversee the grant 

awards and expects quarterly updates on costs and progress. 

 

The purchasing process will begin on February 1, 2019.  All goods and services must be 

purchased by September 30, 2019 the end of the grant. You will need to provide our 

office with three current quotes made out to the Office of the Medical Director for the 

educational materials and/or equipment to be purchased. Please send all information to 

Crystal Ford at Crystal.Beatty@ocfl.net or you may contact her for additional information 

and any questions regarding the grant money or the process of selection at 407-836-9392. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Christian Zuver, M.D. 

Medical Director 

Orange County EMS System 

On behalf of the  

Orange County EMS Advisory Council Board 

 
 

 

 

 

 

13



 

 

 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 6, 2019  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Purchasing 

        SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

        OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF COMMODITIES/SERVICES 
 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2018/2019 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The departments purchase large amounts of various commodities in its daily operations including equipment, 

tooling, and services throughout the year.  This purchasing is accomplished through piggybacking other 

municipalities, state contracts and evaluated sources which provide the best cost savings for the quantities that are 

utilized. 
 

In accordance with Section 107.3.1.2(IV) (A), of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Staff requests approval to issue 

blanket purchase orders to the following vendors for the purchase of the referenced commodities.  The amounts 

shown will remain within the approved FY19 budget.   
 

Department Vendor Commodity Amount Pricing Source 

Recreation TruGreen 
Athletic Fields/Grounds  

Field Care, Fertilizer & Pest Control 
$114,582 

Orange County 

Public Schools 
*see note below* 

Public  

Services 

Michigan 

St. Pump & 

Electric 

Lift Station Pump Repair $190,000 Evaluated Source 

Public 

Services 

S & S 

Concrete 

Concrete – sidewalks, curb repairs & 

driveways 
$60,000 Evaluated Source 

Public 

Services 
P.J.Q. Inc. 

Concrete – sidewalks, curb repairs & 

driveways 
$30,000 Evaluated Source  

 

* TruGreen: The full amount of $114,582 for the fiscal year is dependent on an extension of the contract with Orange County 

Public Schools.  If a contract is not executed the department will return for further action and approval.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Approved FY19 budget.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
Approve the issuance of blanket purchase orders to the referenced vendors for the purchases listed. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

14



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 6, 2019  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services    

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Amendment 1  

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUAD CONTRACT #W1136 AMENDMENT #1 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE AMENDMENT #1 OF THE CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT 

OF CORRECTIONS 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On March 7, 2018, the City Council approved Inmate Work Squad Contract #W1136, for one-year with 

the potential for one one-year extension. The City Council approved the contract to go into effect March 

30, 2018.  The current contract will expire March 29, 2019. The attached contract amendment will allow 

for a final one-year extension to expire on March 29, 2020. The cost will remain the same at $57,497.00. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
       
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign Amendment #1 to Contract #W1136 with the Department of 

Corrections for an inmate work squad. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Manager   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

15



CONTRACT #W1136 
AMENDMENT #1 

Page 1 of 6 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT BETWEEN  

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

AND 

CITY OF APOPKA 

This is an Amendment to the Contract between the Florida Department of Corrections (“Department”) and 
the City of Apopka (“Agency”), to provide for the use of inmate labor in work programs. 

This Amendment: 

• Renews the Contract for one (1) year pursuant to Section I., B., Contract Renewal; revises the end
date of the Contract referenced in Section I., A., Contract Term.  The Department is exercising its
renewal option for one (1) year of the renewal term.  A renewal term of two (2) years remain in the
Contract.

• Revises Section II., B., 3., Communications Equipment, third paragraph;
• Revises Section IV., CONTRACT MANAGEMENT, first paragraph; and
• Revises Addendum A, third line.

Original Contract Term: March 30, 2018 through March 29, 2019 

In accordance with Section V., CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS, the following changes are hereby made: 

1. Section I., CONTRACT TERM/RENEWAL, A., Contract Term is hereby revised to read:

I. A. Contract Term

This Contract shall begin on March 30, 2018, or the last date of signature by all parties, 
whichever is later. 

This Contract shall end at midnight on March 29, 2020. 

This Contract is in its first renewal term.  

2. Section II., B., 3., Communications Equipment, third paragraph, is hereby revised to read:

II. B. 3. Communications Equipment

At the end or termination of this Contract, the Department's Contract Manager will 
contact the Department's Utility Systems/Communications Engineer in the Office of 
Institutions, to effectuate the deprogramming of radio communications equipment 
provided by the Agency. 

16



CONTRACT #W1136 
AMENDMENT #1 

 Page 2 of 6 

3. Section IV., CONTRACT MANAGEMENT, first paragraph, is hereby revised to read: 
 
IV. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 

The Department will be responsible for the project management of this Contract.  The 
Department has assigned the following named individuals, addresses, and phone numbers as 
indicated, as the Department’s Contract Manager and the Department’s Contract Administrator 
for the Project. 

 
4. Addendum A, third line, is hereby revised to read: 

 
Interagency Contract Number W1136, Amendment #1 Effective March 30, 2019.   

 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 

17



CONTRACT #W1136 
AMENDMENT #1 

 Page 3 of 6 

All other terms and conditions of the original Contract remain in full force and effect. 
 
This Amendment shall begin on the last date of signature by all parties. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed by their 
undersigned officials as duly authorized. 
 
AGENCY:  CITY OF APOPKA 
 
SIGNED 
BY: 

 

  
NAME:  
  
TITLE:  
  
DATE:  
  
FEIN: 59-6000265 
  
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS  Approved as to form and legality, subject to 

execution. 
   
SIGNED 
BY: 

 SIGNED 
BY: 

 

    
NAME: Kasey B. Faulk NAME: Kenneth S. Steely 
    
TITLE: Chief, Bureau of Procurement TITLE: General Counsel 
    
DATE:  DATE:  
  

18



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 4 of 6

Revised Addendum A
Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1136, Amendment #1 Effective March 30, 2019
***ENTER MULTIPLIERS IN SHADED BOXES ONLY IF TO BE INVOICED TO AGENCY*** Per Officer Total
 Annual Cost Annual Cost
I.  CORRECTIONAL WORK SQUAD OFFICER SALARIES AND POSITION RELATED-EXPENSES 
    TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:

Officers Salary # Officers  Multiplier 1 54,194.00$     ** 54,194.00$      
Salary Incentive Payment  1,128.00$        1,128.00$        
Repair and Maintenance 121.00$           121.00$           
State Personnel Assessment 354.00$           354.00$           
Training/Criminal Justice Standards 200.00$           200.00$           
Uniform Purchase 400.00$           400.00$           
Uniform Maintenance 350.00$           350.00$           
Training/Criminal Justice Standards  * 2,225.00$        

 
   TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 58,972.00$      56,747.00$      

*Cost limited to first year of contract as this is not a recurring personnel/position cost.

IA.

Number Total
Squads Annual Cost

II.  ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:
Costs include but may not be limited to the following:  
Rain coats, staff high visibility safety vest, inmate high visibility  
safety vest, fire extinguisher, first aid kit, personal protection kit, flex  
cuffs, warning signs, handcuffs, Igloo coolers, portable toilets, insect   
repellants, masks, vaccinations, and other administrative expenses. 1 750.00$           

TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 750.00$           
    

Tools, equipment, materials and supplies not listed in Section II above
are to be provided by the Agency.
 

       CELLULAR PHONE WITH SERVICE REQUIRED:               YES              NO
       ENCLOSED TRAILER REQUIRED:                                       YES              NO

The Overtime Hourly Rate of Compensation for this Contract is $31.85, if applicable.   (The Overtime Hourly 
Rate of Compensation shall include the average hourly rate of pay for a Correctional Officer and the average benefit 
package provided by the department, represented as time and one half for purposes of this Contract.)         
         
"           

** Annual cost does not include overtime pay.

III.  ADDITIONAL AGENCY EXPENSES:

X
X  

19



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 5 of 6

Revised Addendum A
Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1136, Amendment #1 Effective March 30, 2019

Per Unit Number Total Bill To Provided Already
IV.  OPERATING CAPITAL TO BE ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost of Units  Cost Agency By Agency Exists
          Hand Held Radio   -$                 
          Vehicle Mounted Radio 1 -$                 

TOTAL Operating Capital To Be Advanced By Agency -$                 
 

 

 Total
V.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE  ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost
     1.  Operating Capital - from Section IV.   $0.00
     2.  Grand Total - To Be Advanced By Agency At Contract Signing: $0.00

VI.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE BILLED TO AGENCY BY CONTRACT: Total
Cost

     1.  Correctional Officer Salaries and Position-Related Expenses - from Section I. $56,747.00
     2.  Other Related Expenses and Security Supplies - from Section II.  $750.00
     3.  Grand Total - To Be Billed To Agency By Contract: $57,497.00

VII.  TOTAL OF ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH CONTRACT: $57,497.00
        (Total of Sections V. and VI.)

VIII.  OVERTIME COSTS:  
        If the contracting Agency requests overtime for the work squad which is approved by the Department,
        the contracting Agency agrees to pay such costs and will be billed separately by the Department for the cost of overtime.
      

                                 

 

  

MACOM    $4969.00
 MACOM   $5400.00 XX

20



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 6 of 6

 
                                                                                                 Revised Addendum A - INSTRUCTIONS

Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka
Interagency Contract Number W1136, Amendment #1 Effective March 30, 2019

Section I.  Costs in this section are determined each fiscal year by the Budget and Management Evaluation Bureau and are fixed.  
By entering the number of Officers required for this contract, the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the "Total Annual Cost" 
column.  If this Work Squad is beyond the first year of existence, enter a zero (0) in the "Total Annual Cost" 
column for "Training/Criminal Justice Standards" after you have entered the "# Officers Multiplier".

Section II. Safety and environmental health procedures require safety measures such as the use of safety signs, vests, and clothing.
The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that all Work Squad Officers be responsible for ensuring their squad 
is equipped with a first aid kit and a personal protection equipment (PPE) kit.  Section II identifies such required
equipment.  A new squad must be sufficiently equipped and an on-going squad must be re-supplied when needed.
Type in the number of squads used for this contract and the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the fixed annual expense
 of $750.00 per squad and place the total in Section VI.

Section III. Check "Yes" or "No" to indicate whether a Cellular Phone with Service and/or an Enclosed Trailer is required by the Contract Manager.

Section IV. The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that they have at least one (1) primary means of direct
communication with the Institution’s Control Room.  Communication via radio and/or cellular phone is appropriate. 
It is preferred that a backup, secondary means of communication also be available.  It is the Agency's responsibility to provide them.

a radio(s) is not being purchased at this time.  Check applicable boxes ("Bill to Agency", "Provided by Agency" and "Already Exists") for

NOTE:  All radio communication equipment owned or purchased by the Agency that is programmed to the Department's radio
frequency and used by the work squad(s), whether purchased by the Department or the Agency, shall be IMMEDIATELY
deprogrammed by the Department at no cost to the Agency upon the end or termination of this Contract.

Section V. The total funds the Agency must provide at the time the contract is signed will be displayed here when the form is properly filled out. 

Section VI. The total funds the Agency will owe contractually, and pay in equal quarterly payments, will be displayed here.

Section VII. The total funds associated with the Contract, to be paid by the Agency as indicated in Sections V. and VI., will be displayed here.

Section VIII. Any agreement in this area will be billed separately as charges are incurred.

each radio. 

If the Department purchases a radio(s), the Agency must fund the purchase at the time the Contract is signed.  Check the box for the type 
of radio and fill in the Per Unit Cost for the type of radio, Number of Units, and Total Cost columns. Leave the Total Cost column blank if

21



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

SUBJECT: $5MM SYNOVUS TREASURY MANAGEMENT VISA PURCHASING CARD 

AND E-PAYABLES PROGRAM TRANSITION 
 

REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL TO APPROVE FINANCE DIRECTOR AND CITY 

ATTORNEY TO NEGOTIATE REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING IBERIA BANK 

PROGRAM $5MM SPEND WITH SYNOVUS’ BANK PROGRAM. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On January 13, 2019 the current contract with IBERIA Bank expired which included the City’s Purchasing 

Card and E-Payable Program (processing of electronic payments to our vendors).  IBERIA Bank has provided 

us a 90 day extension.  During this period the city needs to find a solution preferably with our existing bank to 

continue this same type of program.  Due to administrative concerns on the reconciliation and accounting 

process side the finance department recommends that this service be provided by our existing provider 

Synovus Bank formerly known as Florida Community Bank.   Synovus Bank recently acquired Florida 

Community Bank in January 2019.  One advantage of continuing with our existing bank is there will be no 

$2,000,000 working capital investment which was required by IBERIA Bank.  Additionally, it will make the 

accounting and reconciliation process smoother.   

 

The previous provider of Florida Community Bank’s program prior to becoming Synovus Bank was reviewed 

by both the City Attorney and the Finance Director and their contract terms and conditions were not 

acceptable and their response to our concerns were not timely in respect to our 90 day window.  While 

working with our banking representative last week and after their compliance review the opportunity arose 

that Synovus Bank (new bank) has a program for purchasing cards and e-payables.   

 

There is no cost to the City but a rebate is earned as revenue on all transactions annually.  Approval for $5MM 

volume of transaction (the approximate volume of current transaction) is required.  The City Attorney and 

Finance Director are still in the review process of the contract and a product demo is scheduled for Monday, 

February 4, 2019.   
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

To approve Finance Director and City Attorney to negotiate replacement of existing IBERIA Bank program 

$5MM spend with Synovus’ Bank Treasury Management Visa Program and E-Payable providing the 

appointment of Jamie Roberson, Finance Director, as the Program Administrator.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

22



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  February 6, 2019 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  ALCOHOL SALES AT THE APOPKA BBQ SHOWDOWN EVENT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL AT THE APOPKA BBQ 

SHOWDOWN EVENT 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Approval of alcohol sales at the Apopka BBQ Showdown event. The event will take place on February 9th, 2019 

from 11:00 am - 6:00 pm at the Northwest Recreation Complex. The event will include food vendors, retail 

vendors, live music and BBQ competition. 

 

On September 3, 2014, City Council adopted ordinance No. 2376 which requires City Council approval for the sale, 

consumption and carrying of alcoholic beverages on city-owned property during events or programs. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the sale of alcohol at the Apopka BBQ Showdown Event  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

23



 

 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Plat 

    Building Elevations 

    Special Exception Site Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN & PLAT – SITE PLAN AND SUBDIVISION PLAN 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT FOR 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE 
  
SUMMARY: 

OWNER:   Farish Enterprises, LLC 

ENGINEER:   Interplan, LLC, c/o Stuart Anderson, P.E. 

LOCATION: 1616 East Semoran Boulevard 

PARCEL ID #:   11-21-28-5600-03-000 

FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 

ZONING: C-2 (General Commercial District) 

EXISTING USE: Vacant  

PROPOSED USES: Hotel, Self-Storage Facility and RV Parking 

BUILDING SIZE: 112,320 square feet; 91 Rooms/51,588 SF - Hotel; 60,732 SF - Storage 

BUILDING HEIGHT: 53 feet (Hotel) and 35 feet (Self-Storage) 

FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.2499 (0.25 Maximum allowed) 

TRACT SIZE:   12.12 +/- Acres (527,937 square feet) 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
24



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-2 Aldi’s and RaceTrac Convenience Store 

East (City and 

County) 

City Commercial;  

County Low Medium Density  

Residential 

C-2 and 

R-2 

Single Family Residences;  

Commercial Uses 

South (City and 

County) 

City Medium Density Residential; 

County Low Medium Density 

Residential  

R-2 Single Family Residences 

West (County) County Commercial C-2 Vacant 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:   City Council approved a preliminary development plan for the Fairfield Inn 

and Self-Storage project on August 1, 2018, and Planning Commission recommended approval of these 

preliminary development plans at its meeting held on July 10, 2018. 

Further, Planning Commission approved a Special Exception Permit and an associated Special Exception 

Site Plan on December 13, 2016.  The Special Exception allowed for an increase in the maximum 

building height from 35 feet to 55 for the hotel building. 

The Final Development Plan is consistent with both the Special Exception Permit and the Preliminary 

Development Plan. 

Farish Enterprises proposes to replat the McVilla Commerce Park Plat from three lots to four lots. Lot 3 

of the McVilla Commerce Center Plat will be subdivided into Lots 3A and 3B.  Lot 3B, is the proposed 

location of a hotel and a storage facility.  Lot 3A will function as an outparcel and is situated to Semoran 

Blvd.   A site plan for Lot 3B is included in this Final Development Plan.  At a future date, a site plan will 

be submitted for the vacant outparcel, Lot 3A.   

The site plan for Lot 3B includes the hotel and self-storage facility.  A service driveway\road connects 

McVilla Avenue to the western end of Lot 3B and to the eastern property line of outparcel in Lot 3A.  A 

multi-tenant monument sign will be placed in a sign easement at the northeast corner of Lot 3A, and 

dedicated to the property owner association.  

At four stories, the hotel includes 91-lodging units and an outdoor pool.  At three stories, the 60,732 

square feet self-storage facility will include outdoor storage for recreational vehicles, trucks and other 

equipment.  Located behind the Aldi Grocery Store and the RaceTrac on East Semoran Boulevard, the 

hotel and self-storage facility have a proposed connection to Semoran from the private driveway, McVilla 

Avenue. 

BUILDING HEIGHT:  Section 2.02.01(A) of the City’s Land Development Code, mandates a 

maximum building height of 35’ for all districts. On December 13, 2016, the Planning Commission 

approved a special exception to allow a maximum building height of fifty-five (55) feet for the hotel. The 

self-storage facility is in accordance with the previously mentioned building height rule of 35’.  The hotel 

is proposed to have a height of 53 feet.  

PARKING:  The hotel site contains 106 parking spaces of which five are handicapped spaces.   And the 

self-storage facility contains 67 parking spaces of which two are handicapped spaces. In total, the 

applicant proposes 69 more parking spaces than what is required by the Land Development Code.  The 
25



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT 

PAGE 3 

 

applicant has not declared whether joint parking will be allowed between the hotel and self-storage sites, 

but that capability exists as Lot 3B will occur under one ownership.  Per Policy 16.2 (Future Land Use 

Element of the Comprehensive Plan),  “Non-residential development shall use shared parking to the 

maximum extent feasible in order to minimize impervious surfaces.  All parking lots with 100 or more 

spaces shall be designed with a minimum of twenty (20) percent of the parking spaces in pervious area”  

Prior to release of the Final Development Plan by Community Development Department, the FDP must 

be revised to show location and materials for the pervious parking spaces. 

ACCESS/TRANSPORTATION:  Access to the site is via a single full access points on US 
441/Semoran Boulevard at McVilla Avenue, a signalized intersection. McVilla Avenue dead ends into 
this project and provides access to US 441/Semoran Boulevard for Aldi on the west and RaceTrac on the 
right. 

A. Road Jurisdiction. 

1. US 441/Semoran Boulevard – State Road. 

2. McVilla Avenue – Private. 

3. A cross-access easement provides connection between Lot 3A and the Aldi lot, connecting 

to Semoran Blvd.  

B. The project is anticipated to generate 71 PM Peak Hour trips. All project generated traffic is 

anticipated to exit the site to US 441/Semoran Boulevard, half heading east and half heading 

west. Sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project. 

C. Road/Intersection Improvements. No roadway or intersection improvements are required. 

D. The Plat shall be revised to indicate the access easement is granted to the owner of Parcel 3A, 

and shall state who has the maintenance responsibility of the cross access easement. 

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond 

located on the south portion of the project site abutting residential uses/districts and surrounded by a 6-

foot tall aluminum fence.  The on-site stormwater management system is designed according to standards 

set forth in the Land Development Code.   

LANDSCAPING/BUFFER:  The site plan shows that parking lots and buildings are proposed to be 

lined with predominantly Live Oaks and Slash Pines.  Live oaks are shown, in addition to a 6-foot tall 

masonry, concrete or brick wall on the southern boundary and in the 35-foot wide landscaped buffer in the 

southeastern portion boundary abutting residential zoning districts. The planting materials are consistent 

with the standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

SIGNAGE:  Four hundred (400) square feet of area within the proposed outparcel on the northeastern 

portion that abuts Semoran Boulevard is designated as an area for multitenant monument signage.  The 

Lot 3A outparcel will be created by plat at the time of Final Development Plan.  Signage for this 

development will be permitted separately and must comply with Article VIII of the City’s Land 

Development Code.  

The Plat shall be revised to show the commercial plaza sign tract to be dedicated to the owner of lot 3a 

and 3b. 
26



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT 

PAGE 4 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

February 6, 2019 - City Council (1:30 pm)  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage Final 

Development Plan and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 8, 2019, found the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage 

Final Development Plan and Plat with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended approval of the Final Development Plan and Plat. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on August 1, 2018, approved the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage 

Preliminary Development Plan.   

 

Recommended Motion: Approve the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage Final Development Plan and Plat. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

27



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT 

PAGE 5 

 
Project Name: Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage Final Development Plan & Plat 

Owner:   Farish Enterprises, LLC 

Engineer:  Interplan c/o Stuart Anderson, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    11-21-28-5600-03-000 
Location:  1616 East Semoran Boulevard 

Total Acres:   12.12 +/- Acres 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 28



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN & PLAT 

PAGE 6 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 
 

Subject Property 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan/Plat   Aerial Map 

   Final Development Plan 

    Plat 
  

 

SUBJECT:  VISTA RESERVE – AMENDMENT TO FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN AND PLAT 

 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE  VISTA RESERVE 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    Pulte Home Company, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Pulte Home Corporation  
 
LOCATION: East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 

intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Suburban Residential 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development)  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 153 single family homes; developed in two phases 
 
TRACT SIZE:    61.1 +/- acres 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  
76



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VISTA RESERVE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT AMENDMENT  
PAGE 2 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Suburban Residential (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant, Lake Merril 

East (City) Low Density Suburban Residential (0-3.5 du/ac) PUD  Oak Hill Reserve subdivision  

South (City) Low Density Suburban Residential (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA, R-1 Carriage Hills subdivision (under 

construction), Vacant property 

West (City) Low Density Suburban Residential (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Wekiva Run subdivision  

 

Project Use: On October 3, 2018, the City Council approved a Final Development Plan and Plat for the 

Vista Reserve subdivision, which is located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile 

north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. The approved Vista Reserve Final 

Development Plan and Plat detailed the development of 153 single family residential lots in one phase. 

Following City Council approval, the applicant submitted a revised Final Development Plan and Plat 

proposing construction of the subdivision in two phases. The amended Final Development Plan and Plat 

are consistent with the Final Development Plan and Plat that were approved by the City Council on 

October 3, 2018 with the exception that the subdivision will be divided into two phases. Phase 1 will 

consist of 52 units, and Phase 2 will consist of 101 units. Each phase has been designed to function on its 

own. Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, lot widths of 65-feet 

and 90-feet are provided. The minimum living area is proposed at 2,190 square feet. 

 

Access: Ingress/egress access points for the development are located via Rogers Road. Rogers Road will 

terminate at the main entrance of the development. The developer will be dedicating a 0.68 acre portion of 

right-of-way along Rogers Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of public roads and 

infrastructure that is owned and maintained by the City. Vehicular and pedestrian connections are 

provided to the property to the north and to the Carriage Hills subdivision located to the south. 

 

Stormwater: Two tracts located on the northwestern and northeastern corners of the site are reserved for 

stormwater retention. The stormwater retention areas will be owned and maintained by the homeowners 

association. 

 

Recreation: Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, a 1.67 acre 

tract is reserved for the community recreation facility that will be owned and maintained by the 

homeowners association. Included within the recreation facility is a picnic area, pool, pool cabana 

building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a parking area for 8 cars.    

 

Buffer/Tree Program: Consistent with the approved PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, a 

continuous open space tract with is provided around the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes 

from the surrounding existing subdivisions. Thirty percent of the site, or 18.13 acres of open space is 

provided, and will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.  

 

Landscaping and a 6-foot high brick wall is provided along Rogers Road. Trees are located within the 

open space tract provided around the perimeter of the subdivision.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement 

with Orange County Public Schools to address school impacts generated by this residential development. The 

schools zoned to receive students from this community are the following: Wolf Lake Elementary School, Wolf 

Lake Middle School and Apopka High School. 
77



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VISTA RESERVE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT AMENDMENT  
PAGE 3 
 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and 

plat for this property through the DRC agenda distribution. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission, 5:30 pm 

February 6, 2019 - City Council, 1:30 pm  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Vista Reserve Final Development 

Plan and Plat amendment, subject to final review by the City surveyor and City Engineer prior to 

recording the plat.  

 

The Planning Commission at its January 8, 2019 meeting unanimously recommended approval of the 

amendment to the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat, subject to final review by the City 

surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the plat.   

 

City Council: Approve the amendment to the Vista Reserve Final Development Plan and Plat.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

78



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VISTA RESERVE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT AMENDMENT  
PAGE 4 
 

 
Project: VISTA RESERVE 

Owned by:  Pulte Home Company LLC 
Located:         East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of  

Rogers Road and Lester Road 
Parcel ID#s: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

79



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VISTA RESERVE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT AMENDMENT  
PAGE 5 
 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   February 6, 2019  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                Fire Department   

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:         Stryker Agreements 

  X  OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS WITH STRYKER SALES CORPORATION  

 

REQUEST: RATIFY THE TWO AGREEMENTS AND FY18/19 EXPENDITURES 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

During the FY17/18 budget process, department staff discussed with city council the purchase of a 

Stryker, ambulance stretcher, (Power-PRO XT), a stretcher fastener track system (PowerLOAD), a 

medical stair chair, (Stair-PRO) and the extended service agreements associated with those items.  The 

previous City Administration entered into a three year financial agreement with Stryker Flex Financial on 

9/28/2017 and the total amount financed was $53,349.46. On February 1, 2018, the first annual payment 

was made from budget line 2130-6400, Equipment and Machinery, in the amount of $17,783.15.  

 

Also purchased through another agreement with Stryker Flex Financial was Physio Medical Equipment,   

including cardiac defibrillator monitors, (Physio LIFEPAK 15), mechanical chest compression devices, 

(LUCAS 3.0), an advanced AED, (LIFEPAK 1000), and the replacement of all City AED’s that were 

obsolete and past the manufactured life span.   The total amount financed was $216,588.82 on 10/27/2017 

for a five year financial agreement.  On February 1, 2018, the first annual payment was made from budget 

line 2130-6400, Equipment and Machinery, in the amount of $50,001.88. 

 

The former City Administration authorized and entered into the two agreements with Stryker Flex 

Financial. The entire cost of the items were all budgeted from the EMS budget, 2130-6400, Equipment 

and Machinery, in FY17/18, however, the agreements were never brought to council for formal approval 

and the debt service was not recognized in the FY 18/19 budget.  Staff is requesting council officially 

ratify the two agreements and approve the debt service and associated budget amendment for FY18/19.                  
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

General Fund Reserves – Budget Amendment to follow in Resolution       
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Ratify the two agreements and FY18/19 expenditures. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2702 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2702 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE - 

FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC. 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2702 – SECOND READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT FOR CONSTRUESSE 

USA, INC. – FROM “COUNTY” LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) 

TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (0-3.5 DU/AC) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Construesse USA, INC.   
 
LOCATION: 2600 Rock Springs Road  
 
PARCEL ID:  28-20-28-0000-00-024 
 
EXISTING USE: 2 Single Family Homes 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1 & A-R 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  2 Single Family Homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Applicant has not completed a zoning application for the property.   
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.59 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 38 Single Family Homes 
    PROPOSED:   33 Single Family Homes 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 164



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on October 17, 2018 by 
Ordinance No. 2681. The applicant has applied for Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use and Planned 
Unit Development Zoning. The intent, at this time, is to develop a single-family, infill subdivision. Future 
Land Use designations to the north, south, and west are also Residential Low Suburban. 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support 

a Residential Low Suburban FLUM designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.d 
 
Low Density Suburban Residential 
 

The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre, elementary schools; 
middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2018. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  

January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

January 16, 2019 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

February 6, 2019 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

December 28, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) and Notification (letter, poster) 

January 25, 2019 -- Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban for the property owned by Construesse USA, Inc. 
and located at 2600 Rock Springs Road.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 8, 2019, found the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
areas; and unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” 
Low Density Residential to “City” Residential Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on January 16, 2019, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2702 and 
held it over for second reading and adoption on February 6, 2019.  
 
Recommended Motion:  Adopt Ordinance No. 2702. 
 
Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 165



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 3 

 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

166



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 4 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Residential Low Suburban “City” R-1A Landings at Rock Springs 

Subdivision 

East (County) “County” Rural Settlement 1/5 “County” A-2 Single Family Houses 

South (City) “City” Residential Low Suburban “City” R-1AA Traditions at Wekiva Subdivision 

West (City) “City” Residential Low Suburban “City” R-1AA Traditions at Wekiva Subdivision 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for low density, residential use, which makes the 
request for a Residential Low Suburban future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan policies listed above, as well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties to the south, north, and west are developed as existing single-family house subdivisions, with a 
Future Land Use of Residential Low Suburban. The proposed Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use 
is compatible with the property and the vicinity. 
 
The proposed Residential Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general future 
land use character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The 
proposed FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 ac) to 
“City” Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second 
Amendment. Construesse USA, Inc. is the applicant of the proposed future land use amendment and 
proposed change of zoning for the property, and have been notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from N. Rock Springs Road. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with 
the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has 
been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City 
of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 167



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 5 

 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The heavily wooded property contains 2 single family 
homes. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac).  Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population by 
an estimated 87 persons. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 38 Units x 2.659 p/h = 101 persons (County) 
PROPOSED: 33 Units x 2.659 p/h = 87 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is 
required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or 
Preliminary Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species 
survey and submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified 
within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 
1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 

GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  7,448    GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    6,468  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 

GPD / Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     7,980  GPD 
168



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 6 

 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   6,930  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes    

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     404    lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    348    lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:      None      

 169



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 7 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 

capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.303  acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.261    acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 
Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

170



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 8 

 

Construesse USA, Inc. 
9.59 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential 

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 & A-R 
To: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 

Parcel ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-024 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
171



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 9 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 
 

  

172



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 10 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
173



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.  

PAGE 11 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

174



ORDINANCE NO. 2702 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 

WEKIVA POINTE CIRCLE AND WEST OF ROCK SPRINGS ROAD, 

COMPRISING 9.59 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY 

CONSTRUESSE USA, INC.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, 
Florida Statutes and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2688 on December 19, 2018; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2688, is amended in its 
entirety to change the land use from “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” 
Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac), for certain real property generally located west of Rock 
Springs Road and north of Wekiva Pointe Circle, comprising 9.59 acres more or less, and owned 
by Construesse USA, Inc.; as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as 
provided by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 

175



ORDINANCE NO. 2702 

PAGE 2 

 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 

Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

 

Section VI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on  

February 6, 2019. 
 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
January 16, 2019 

 
READ SECOND 
TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
February 6, 2019 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: December 28, 2018; January 25, 2019 

  

176



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2702 
Construesse USA, Inc. 

Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 
To: “City” Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac)  

Parcel ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-024 
Acreage: 9.59 +/- 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

177



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Ordinance No. 2705 

  
 

SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2705 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT – WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL & JOSE & IRIS 
ACEVEDO 

    
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2705 – SECOND READING – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AMENDMENT – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 
WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL & JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO – FROM 
COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR) TO RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 
DU/AC)  

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS/APPLICANTS: William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo 
  
LOCATION: 355, 363, and 371 W. Kelly Park Rd. 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-20-28-7608-00-350; 09-20-28-7608-00-354; 09-20-28-7608-00-352 
 
EXISTING USE: 3 Single Family Houses 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  C-1 “Retail Commercial District” 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  3 Single Family Houses 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” R-1 (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed 

along with a request to change the zoning classification from C-1 “Retail 
Commercial District”  to R-1 “Residential Single-Family District” 

 
TRACT SIZE:   1.36 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:    14,810 sq. ft. commercial space 
    PROPOSED:  3 Dwelling Units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A    
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
178



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The subject parcels were annexed in the city on May 19, 2010 by Ordinance Nos. 
2160 and 2161. Commercial Future Land Use was designated to the properties on September 1, 2010 via Ordinance 
Nos. 2187 and 2189, Commercial Zoning was assigned on the same day, via Ordinance Nos. 2188 and 2190. The 
three existing single-family homes have been legal, non-conforming structures since the Commercial Future Land 
Use and Commercial Zoning were assigned.  
 
The applicants propose R-1 zoning and Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use to attain a legal, 
conforming status to the three existing single family homes.  
  

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Residential 

Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 

Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a Residential Very 

Low Suburban FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.c 

Very Low Density Suburban Residential 
 
The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary schools; middle 
schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant increase 
(less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Therefore, the 
property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 14, 2018. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

January 16, 2019 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1
st
 Reading 

February 6, 2019 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

December 28, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) and Notification (Letters, Poster) 

January 25, 2019 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee: Finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed Future Land 
Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban for the properties owned by William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & 
Iris Acevedo, and located at 355, 363, and 371 W. Kelly Park Rd.   
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 8, 2019, found the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and 
unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Commercial to 
Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on January 16, 2019, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2705 and held 
it over for Second Reading and Adoption on February 6, 2019. 
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance No. 2705.  
 
Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are 

179



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 3 

 
to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

180



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Rural “County” R-CE Single Family Home 

East (County) “County” Rural Settlement 1/5 “County” R-CE Woodlands 

South (City & 

County) 

“City” Residential Estates & “County” 

Rural 

“County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” R-CE Single Family Homes 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from “Commercial” to Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/AC) 
is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  
 
 Transportation: Road access to 371 and 363 W. Kelly Park Rd. is from W. Kelly Park Road, while 355 
W. Kelly Park Rd. is accessed from a connector road, intersecting with Mt. Plymouth Road and W. Kelly Park 
Rd. 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed 
against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's 
adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following 
policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 

Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the properties is a single family home. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 
use designation for the property is Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/AC). Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) = 14,810 sq. ft.  
PROPOSED: 3 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h =   7 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is not 
required for developments less than ten (10) acres in size.   
 

181



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 5 

 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 90 GPD/1,000sf ; 81 
GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation: 1,333 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  567 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  90 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None  
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 200 GPD/1,000sf ; 174 
GPD/Capita 
 

If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka  
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:   2,962 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation: 1,218 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes  
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 200 GPD / 1,000 sf 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 174 GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation: 59 lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 28 lbs /  day 

 
182



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 6 

 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None   

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number:  
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  24.141  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: No 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None      
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm   
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm     
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 

Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

 
  

183



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 7 

 

William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo 
1.36 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Commercial  

To: Residential Very Low Suburban 
 Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: C-1 
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-350, 09-20-28-7608-00-354, 09-20-28-7608-00-352 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 

184



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 8 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 

185



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 9 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 

186



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 10 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser Aerial, November 2018 
187



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2705 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM COMMERCIAL TO 
RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC) FOR CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF W. KELLY PARK ROAD 
AND WEST OF MT. PLYMOUTH ROAD, COMPRISING 1.36 ACRES 
MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL; 
AND JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, 
Florida Statutes and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2688 adopted on December 19, 
2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2688, is amended in its 
entirety to change the land use from Commercial to Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac), 
for certain real property located north of W. Kelly Park Rd. and West of Mt. Plymouth Rd., 
comprising 1.36 acre more or less, as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as 
provided by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

188



ORDINANCE NO. 2705 
PAGE 3 
 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 

Section VI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
 6

th
 day of February, 2019. 

 
 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
January 16, 2019 

 
READ SECOND 
TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
February 6, 2019 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: December 28, 2018; January 25, 2019 

 

189



ORDINANCE NO. 2705 
PAGE 3 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL AND JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO 
1.36 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Commercial  

To: Residential Very Low Suburban 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: C-1 
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-350, 09-20-28-7608-00-354, 09-20-28-7608-00-352 
 
 

 

 

 

190



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2706 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2706 - CHANGE OF ZONING – WILLIAM & CECILIA 

UEBEL, & JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2706 – SECOND READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – 

FROM C-1 (RETAIL COMMERCIAL) TO R-1 (RESIDENTIAL) FOR 

WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL, & JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNERS/APPLICANTS: William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo 

  

LOCATION: 355, 363, and 371 W. Kelly Park Rd. 
 

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-20-28-7608-00-350, 09-20-28-7608-00-354, 09-20-28-7608-00-352 

 

EXISTING USE: 3 Single Family Houses 

 

CURRENT ZONING:  C-1 “Retail Commercial District” 

 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” R-1 (Note: this Change of Zoning request is being processed along with a 

request to change the Future Land Use from “Commercial” (Max. 0.25 FAR) to 
Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac). 

 
TRACT SIZE:   1.36 +/- acres  

 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:    14,810 sq. ft. commercial space 

    PROPOSED:  3 Dwelling Units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  
191



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

CHANGE OF ZONING – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The subject parcels were annexed in the city on May 19, 2010 by 
Ordinance Nos. 2160 and 2161. Commercial Future Land Use was designated to the properties on 
September 1, 2010 via Ordinance Nos. 2187 and 2189, Commercial Zoning was assigned on the same 
day, via Ordinance Nos. 2188 and 2190. The three existing single-family homes have been legal, non-
conforming structures since the Commercial Future Land Use and Commercial Zoning were assigned. 
 
The applicants propose R-1 zoning and Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use to attain a legal, 
conforming status to the three existing single family homes.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 
consistent with the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/Acre) Future Land Use designation 
and the City’s R-1 Zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 
Future Land Use policies.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 14, 2018.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

January 16, 2019 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1
st
 Reading 

February 6, 2019 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  
December 28, 2018 - Public Notice and Notification- (Apopka Chief, letter to property owner) 
January 25, 2019 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 for the properties owned by William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris 
Acevedo. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 8, 2019, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and 
unanimously recommended approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-1 to R-1 for the 
properties owned by William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on January 16, 2019, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2706 
and held it over for second reading and adoption on February 6, 2019.  
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance No. 2706. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

192



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

CHANGE OF ZONING – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 3 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Rural “County” R-CE Single Family Home 

East (County) “County” Rural Settlement 1/5 “County” R-CE Woodlands 

South (City & 

County) 

“City” Residential Estates & “County” 

Rural 

“County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” R-CE Single Family Homes 

 
 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The properties are currently accessed from W. Kelly Park Rd. and 

Mt. Plymouth Rd. Each parcel contains an existing single family 

home. The proposed R-1 zoning is compatible, due to the size and 

use of the properties.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Residential Very Low Suburban” (0-2 
DU/AC) and with the character of the surrounding area and future 
proposed development. Development Plans shall not exceed the 
density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation. 

 

  

193



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

CHANGE OF ZONING – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 4 

 
 

 
William & Cecilia Uebel & Jose & Iris Acevedo 

1.36 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Commercial  
To: Residential Very Low Suburban 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: C-1 

To: R-1 
Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-350, 09-20-28-7608-00-354, 09-20-28-7608-00-352 

 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 

194



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

CHANGE OF ZONING – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 5 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  Apopka Community Dev. Dept., November 2018 

195



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

CHANGE OF ZONING – UEBEL/ACEVEDO 

PAGE 6 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser Aerial, November 2018 196



ORDINANCE NO. 2706 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM C-1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) TO R-1 

(SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTCRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST KELLY PARK ROAD AND 

WEST OF MT. PLYMOUTH ROAD, COMPRISING 1.36 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL AND JOSE 

& IRIS ACEVEDO PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best 

interest of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications 

within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1 (Single Family Residential District) zoning has been 

found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka 

Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as R-1 (Single Family Residential District) as defined in the Apopka Land 

Development Code and as appearing in Exhibit “A”: 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

197



ORDINANCE 2706 

Page 2 
 

 

Section VI.  This Ordinance shall take effect if and when the companion Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use Map amendment relative to the subject property (Ord. 2705) becomes 

effective pursuant to § 163.3187(5)(c), Fla. Stat. If the companion Comprehensive Plan Future 

Land Use Map amendment does not become effective, then this Ordinance shall become null and 

void. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: December 28, 2018 
       January 25, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

READ FIRST TIME:  January 16, 2019 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
February 6, 2019 

 
 
 
 

 

198



ORDINANCE 2706 

Page 3 
 

WILLIAM & CECILIA UEBEL AND JOSE & IRIS ACEVEDO 
1.36 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Commercial 

To: Residential Very Low Suburban 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: C-1 
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 09-20-28-7608-00-350, 09-20-28-7608-00-354, 09-20-28-7608-00-352 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199



 

 

 
 CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Concept Plan 
    Ordinance No. 2690 

  
 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2690 – COMPRHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT – CARROL M. HAMRICK 

   
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2690 – FIRST READING - COMPRHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CARROL M. HAMRICK – 
FROM RESIDENTIAL ESTATES (0-1 DU/AC) TO RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW 
SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC); AND AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL TO THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY. 

  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Carrol M Hamrick 
 
APPLICANT:   PMDW Ventures, LLC 
 
LOCATION: North of West Ponkan Rd. & West of Mt. Stirling Avenue  
 
PARCEL ID #(S): 21-20-28-0000-00-019 & 21-20-28-0000-00-022 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:   35 Single Family Houses 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1AA (Single Family Residential)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1AA (Single Family Residential)   
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING FLU: 35 Dwelling Units 
FLUM:    PROPOSED FLU: 70 Dwelling Units 
 
TRACT SIZE:   35.21 +/- acres  
  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
200



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to use the subject properties for a single family 
subdivision, and requests the City to assign a future land use designation of Residential Very Low Suburban to 
the property.  
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City on July 18, 1990 via Ordinance No. 624.  Pursuant to 
Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban is compatible with the 
designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 35.21 acres.  

 
Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Uses: 
 

“The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary 
schools; middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks.” 

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the 
findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and 
nearby land uses and the character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Residential Very Low Suburban designation. 
 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County 

Public Schools will be required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
December 5, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal (continued) 
February 6, 2019 –City Council – (1:30 pm)  
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 2, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) and Notification (letters and posting) 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
Planning Commission: On November 13, 2018, the Planning Commission found the proposed amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and 
recommended transmittal of the Future Land Use Map designation from Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac) to 
Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
City Council: On December 5, 2018, the City Council voted to postpone the first reading of Ordinance No. 
2690 to February 6, 2019, and requested that the applicant hold a community meeting with nearby residents 
.before the February 6 City Council meeting.   
 
Recommended Motion:  Accept the first reading of Ordinance No. 2690 and authorize transmittal to the 
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

201



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 3 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates (0-1 DU/AC) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Estates (0-1 DU/AC) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

South (City) Mixed Use Mixed-CC Vacant 

West (County) Rural A-1 Single Family House 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to use this site for a single family subdivision. 

 

North: Abutting the subject property to the north is Rock Springs Ridge Phase 2, a single family 

subdivision. 

 

West: The property to the west is moderately wooded and comprises of a single family house. 

 

South: The adjacent property is vacant. 

 

East: To the east is the aforementioned Rock Springs Ridge Phase 2, a single-family residential 

community. 

 

The proposed future land use designation of Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) is consistent with 

the surrounding future land use designations and Policy 3.5 in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Future 

Land use Element: “Residential development north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road (Park 

Avenue) will be restricted to no more than two dwelling units per acre, unless otherwise authorized 

through the adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan.” 

 

Therefore, staff supports the proposed future land use changes. 
 

Other Information:  
  

Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 

 
Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 

adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

202



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 4 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection shows that karst features are within the vicinity of this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The properties abut Mt. Stirling Avenue and Rock 
Springs Ridge Ph. 2 to the east. City parcels to the north and east have a maximum allowable residential 
density of one dwelling unit per acre. Due to the previously mentioned, Comprehensive Plan, Policy 3.5, 
the maximum allowable residential density of the south-adjacent Mixed Use parcels is 2 dwelling units 
per acre. Subsequently, the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban, also allows a maximum density of 
2 dwelling units per acre. Thus, staff finds the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use 
to be compatible with the property, and within the vicinity.  
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the subject site is Residential Very Low Suburban (0 – 2 du/ac).   An amendment 
to the Future Land Use of Residential Very Low Suburban Density will generate an estimated population 
increase of up to 93 persons. Based on the housing element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this 
amendment will increase the City’s future population, but a housing supply is needed to meet the growing 
population.  
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
EXISTING: Residential Estates (0-1 DU/AC, 35.21 AC)  
  35 D/U X 2.659 p/h = 93 persons 
 
PROPOSED: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/AC) 
  70 D/U x 2.659 p/h = 186 persons 
  Net Increase = 93 Persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This 
site is greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan 
application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located 
within the City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  6,860    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    13,720  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
203



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 5 

 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     7,350  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   14,700  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes    

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     372    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    744    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 

204



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 6 

 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:      None      
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.279  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.558    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

205



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 7 

 
 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Residential Estates 

To: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/AC) 
Parcel ID #s: 20-20-28-0000-00-022 & 21-20-28-0000-00-019  

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 206



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 8 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 207



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 9 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 208



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

COMP PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - HAMRICK 

PAGE 10 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

 

 

 
 

209



ORDINANCE NO. 2690 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL 

ESTATES TO RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST 

PONKAN ROAD AND WEST OF MOUNT STERLING AVENUE, OWNED 

BY CAROL M. HAMRICK; COMPRISING 35.21 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2659; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the property identified in Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance to Residential Very Low Suburban, and incorporated herein by 

reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

210



ORDINANCE NO. 2690 

PAGE 3 

 

 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

____ day of ____ _________, 2019. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: December 5, 2018 

  

READ SECOND 

TIME: 

February 6, 2019 

  

READ THIRD TIME 

AND ADOPTION: 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 2, 2018 

  

211



ORDINANCE NO. 2690 

PAGE 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CAROL M HAMRICK 

Property Owner 

35.21 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From:  Residential Estates (0-1 DU/AC) 

To: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 DU/AC) 
Parcel ID #: 21-20-28-0000-00-019 & 21-20-28-0000-00-022 

  

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

212



 

 

 
  CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6. 2019 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  PUD Master Plan;  Vicinity Map 
 Preliminary Development Plan;  Adjacent Zoning Map 
 and Preliminary Site Plan  Aerial Map 
   PUD Master Plan Amendment 
   Ordinance No. 2709 
   Preliminary Development Plan 

    Preliminary Site Plan 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2709 - PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT FOR MID-
FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK 

   
REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2709 – FIRST READING - AMENDMENT OF THE PUD 

MASTER PLAN; PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN FOR MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK; AND 
HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY: 
OWNERS:   Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD, Florida Express Trucking, Inc., Eagles 

Landing at Ocoee, LLC  
 
APPLICANT:   Dave Schmitt Engineering, Inc. c/o Bryan Gaines, AICP  
 
LOCATION: West side of SR 429, south of General Electric Road, and east of Hermit Smith 

Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 01-21-27-0000-00-060, 06-21-28-7172-12-020, 06-21-28-7172-12-041,  

06-21-28-7172-12-060, 01-21-27-0000-00-030, 06-21-28-7172-13-000, 
12-21-27-0000-00-010, 12-21-27-0000-00-018, 12-21-27-0000-00-015,  
12-21-27-0000-00-017, 12-21-27-0000-00-021 

 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Industrial  
 
CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
PROPOSED  
DEVELOPMENT: 2,342,566 square feet industrial buildings; developed in multiple phases 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE: 189.00 +/- acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

213



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  A revised development agreement will appear on the February 20, 
2019 City Council meeting together with the second hearing for the amendment to the PUD Master Plan. 
 
On October 18, 2018, the City Commission approved a PUD Master Plan for Mid-Florida Logistics Park, 
which detailed the construction of a subdivision consisting of five industrial warehouse buildings totaling 
2,406,095 on property located west of SR 429, south of General Electric Road and east of Hermit Smith 
Road. The applicant has submitted an amendment to the PUD Master Plan for approval, and is requesting 
to amend the PUD Master Plan to accomplish the following: 1) reduce the overall permitted square 
footage from 2,406,095 square feet to approximately 2,342,566 square feet, 2) relocate Building 2 into an 
east-west configuration from a north-south configuration, and extend Building 5 further to the east and 
rename Building 5 to Building 5A and 5B, 3) reconfigure two public rights-of-ways proposed for 
construction on the property; and 4) allow extension of the rail spur to connect to the southern-most lot. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The amended PUD Master Plan proposes an industrial subdivision 
consisting of five industrial warehouse buildings totaling approximately 2,342,566 square feet. Consistent 
with the PUD Master Plan that was approved on October 18, 2018, access to the site is proposed via an 
ingress/egress point on Hermit Smith Road, two ingress/egress points on General Electric Road, and a yet 
to be constructed road that is dedicated to the public that is referred to as Shelby Industrial Drive, which is 
proposed to be constructed in a north-south configuration. Shelby Industrial Drive will terminate at 
Building 5A and 5B, and will intersect with Peterson Road, which is proposed to run in an east-west 
direction. Peterson Road will extend to the east and will cross under SR 429, which will facilitate 
roadway connections to properties located on the east side of SR 429. The PUD Master Plan details the 
dedication of 25-feet of public right-of-way to the east of Building 5A to allow future access to the 
properties to the south. In addition, three railroad spurs are proposed to lead into buildings 1A and 1B, 2, 
and 3. The railroad spurs will be located along the right-of-way of Shelby Industrial Drive. An 
unimproved platted right-of-way known as Peterson Road bisects the property from east to west. This 
right-of-way is proposed to be vacated when the property is platted, and the right-of-way of Peterson 
Road will be relocated to the south to allow access to the property owners located to the south of the 
PUD. The proposed relocation of the Peterson Road right-of-way is shown on the amended PUD Master 
Plan. The new right-of-way of Peterson Road is proposed at 80-feet in width. Consistent with the 
approved PUD Master Plan, parking will be provided on each lot, and will be owned and maintained by 
each property owner.  
 
Four stormwater retention areas are proposed on site. Pond A (dry retention) is proposed south of Building 
3, Pond B is proposed east of Buildings 1A and 1B and adjacent to the west of SR 429, and Ponds C1 (dry 
retention) and C2 (wet detention) are proposed south and west of Buildings 5A and 5B.  
 
Deviations:  No new deviations are proposed. The applicant is carrying over five (5) deviations to the 
City’s required development standards that were approved with the Master Plan on October 18, 2018. For 
a PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code (LDC) does not represent a 
variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned 
Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code 
unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 
guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare. Any deviations must be consistent 
with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

1. LDC, Section 6.03.02.A. Number of parking spaces required (Wholesale, industrial, 
manufacture, processing or assembly uses) - 2 spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area up 
to 150,000 square feet, plus 1 space per vehicle operating from premises or 1 space per 2 
employees. 1 space per 1,000 square feet over 150,000 square feet of gross floor area.  
The applicant is proposing 0.89 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “The ITE Parking Generation Manual, 4

th
 

Edition, 85
th

 percentile parking requirement for warehouse use is 0.81 spaces per 1,000 square 
214



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 3 

 
feet of gross floor area.”   

 
2. LDC, Section 2.02.01.A. - Maximum building height for all zoning districts is 35-feet.  

 
The applicant is proposing a maximum building height of 55-feet within the PUD.  

 
The following justification has been provided: “The modern warehouses require 36-feet to 45-
feet of clear space under roof to accommodate automated materials handling equipment and 
maximize storage.”  
 

3. LDC, Section 2.02.15.F. Yard requirements - Front yard – 25-feet, side yard – 10-feet, Yards 
adjacent to road right-of-ways shall be a minimum of 25-feet, Rear Yard – 10-feet (30-feet 
adjacent to residential)  
 
The applicant is proposing 15-foot setback on General Electric Road, Hermit Smith Road to 
main entrance, 0-feet to 10-feet adjacent to SR 429, 10-feet to 25-feet adjacent to Peterson Road, 
10-feet adjacent to Fern Industrial Drive.  

 
The following justification has been provided: “The northwestern portion of the site is 
constrained by the encroachment of General Electric Road. SR 429 has 300-feet of right-of-way, 
6 lanes, and provides a 20-foot high barrier to adjacent property to the east.”  

 
4. LDC, Section 2.02.01.b(8a) – Roof top equipment shall be completely screened from adjacent 

properties and rights-of-way to the maximum extent possible.  
 

The applicant is proposing roof top equipment shall be screened from view from adjacent 
property lines and public right-of-way, with the exception of SR 429 due to the large elevation 
change of the roadway and the finished floor elevation of the building. SR 429 is at an elevation 
of 135-feet, approximately 20-feet above the finished floor height of Building 2. Screening shall 
be reviewed to be in conformance by the subdivision president and the City of Apopka. 
Screening shall be reviewed through a sight line document from the nearest adjacent property 
line and/or from the center line of the public right-of-way. The eye line shall be from the typical 
height of a person driving an automobile.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “All buildings will have a site line evaluation to 
confirm that rooftop equipment will not be visible from adjacent properties and right-of-way.”   
 

5. LDC, Section 6.02.08.B.2 – All subdivisions are required to have four-foot wide concrete 
sidewalks on both sides of all local and minor collector streets.  

 
The applicant is proposing to construct an 8-foot wide sidewalk along only one side of Fern 
Industrial Drive.  
 
The following justification has been provided: “We are requesting that we do not place a 
sidewalk on the east side of the right-of-way proximate to the rail spurs. The pedestrian access 
plan provided on Sheet 6 of the PUD Master Plan shows a network of pedestrian facilities 
serving the entire site. The sidewalk on the west side of Fern Industrial is the spine connecting 
the southern end of the site with General Electric Road. All buildings are connected to this 
north/south spine and the appropriate crosswalks are provided when needed. We [BlueScope) 
remain concerned that placement of a sidewalk will not increase the pedestrian connectivity over 
the current plan but will put pedestrians in close proximity to the rail spurs to the east of Fern 
Industrial serving the site. The benefit of the additional sidewalk does not, in our opinion, 
warrant the risk of inadvertent interaction of pedestrians and rail vehicles.”  

 
TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS:  ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided from General Electric 

215



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 4 

 
Road, Hermit Smith Road, and Fronds Road.  Peterson Road is also a future access point for this project 
as well as for properties to the south of the Mid-Florida Logistics Park site.   The proposed Peterson Road 
alignment will also create connection to Peterson Road east of SR 429, allowing any residents of Avian 
Pointe to reach the Logistics Park.  The Peterson Road connection between the east and west side of SR 
429 also allows another road connection besides using West Orange Avenue and Binion Road, thus 
allowing traffic to distribute over more routes. 
 
TRANSPORTATION: A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for this project to assess its 
impacts on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile radius of the project 
per the City’s adopted TIA methodology. Included in the analysis were segments of US 441, General 
Electric Road, Binion Road, Hermit Smith Road and Hogshead Road. Intersections analyzed were 
General Electric Road & Orange Avenue, Hermit Smith Road & General Electric Road, Hermit Smith 
Road & US 441, SR 429 Connector Road & US 441, Orange Avenue & US 441, Plymouth Sorrento Road 
& US 441, Boy Scout Boulevard & U&S 441, General Electric Road & Site Access, and Hermit Smith 
Road & Site Access.  Peterson Road connection requires additional right-of-way east of SR 429.  In 
exchange for the City vacating Fromm Road and Peterson Road, Mid-Florida Freezer will be obligated to 
donate an additional 30-foot width of land along Peterson Road, east of SR 429, to create a 50-foot wide 
right-of-way. 
 
The project will generate 3,444 daily trips and 246 P.M. Peak Hour trips. It is estimated that 20% of the 
total traffic generated by this project will be truck traffic. The nature of the land use supports the 
assumption that most of the truck traffic will leave the site and access SR 429 from US 441 and SR 429 
Connector Road.  
 
The addition of project trips to the study roadways will not cause the Level of Service (LOS) to fall below 
the City’s adopted LOS standard. The addition of project traffic to the intersection of Hermit Smith Road 
and US 441 will cause the intersection to fail. The applicant is required to design and construct a 
dedicated right turn lane on Hermit Smith Road to allow for safe access to US 441. The addition of 
project traffic to the other study intersections is not project to cause failures in the future. 
 
The tenants of the Mid-Florida Logistics Park are unknown at this time, so trip generation is based on the 
best information currently available; however, it is possible that tenants occupying space at Mid-Florida 
Logistics Park will exceed the trip generation used to conduct the analysis. As the site develops and 
becomes occupied, the applicant must reassess the trip generation. If it exceeds the projected trip 
generation used in the analysis, an updated study is required and additional mitigation for roadway and 
intersection failures caused by the project traffic. 
 
PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: No new PUD recommendations are proposed.  The below conditions 
carryover from the original City Council approval.  That the zoning classification of the following 
described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning 
provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 
If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 
within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 
these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 
the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
216



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 5 

 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 
 
 

C.  Zoning Standards - The following uses are permitted within the PUD district: 
 

1. All permitted uses allowed under I-1 zoning district; 
 

2. The uses allowed by the “Developer’s Agreement for Development of Copart, Inc. Apopka 
Property,” as recorded as document number 20160275220 within the official records of 
Orange County, Florida, shall be available uses within this PUD if the Copart Developer’s 
Agreement is terminated with the mutual consent of City Council and the property owner 
subject to the Copart Developer’s Agreement; 
 

3. Long-term outdoor vehicle (bus, car, cab, and truck) storage and terminal use is permitted 
within the PUD as an accessory use if said vehicle parking is associated with an enclosed 
building having a minimum floor area of 10,000 square feet and located within the same Lot or 
abutting lots.  All vehicles stored outdoors must be operable.   
  

D. The following uses are Prohibited within the PUD district:  
 

1. Flea markets 
 

2. Day-care centers except when provided solely for on-site employees  
 

3. Churches 
 

4. Public or private schools (K-12th grade) except when located within a stand-alone building 
 

5. Community residential homes  
 

6. All prohibited uses for the I-1 zoning district 
 

E. Special Exceptions: As set forth by the I-1 zoning district except if listed as a permitted or 
prohibited uses above. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed amendment and use of the property is 
consistent with the proposed Industrial Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land 
Development Code, except for those which deviations are proposed to.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 
notification to Orange County was provided on December 5, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
January 8, 2019 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
February 6, 2019 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
February 20, 2019 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
December 21, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief); Letter, Poster 
  

217



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 6 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment to the Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) Master Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and 

recommends approval of the amendment to the Mid-Florida Logistics Park PUD Master Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 8, 2019, unanimously recommended approval of 

the amendment to the Mid-Florida Logistics Park Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan based 

on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits, and subject to City Council approving 

a revised Development Agreement. 

 

City Council: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2709 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and 

Adoption on February 20, 2019.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

218



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 7 

 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial (max FAR 0.60) I-1 Transport/freight uses, Copart  

East (City) None assigned  N/A SR 429 right-of-way  

South (County) Orange County Rural  AG Vacant property 

West (City) Orange County Rural  AG Lake Apopka Restoration Area 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Hermit Smith Road and General 

Electric Road and a yet to be constructed public roadway referred to 
as Fern Industrial Drive, which will be owned and maintained by the 
City of Apopka. Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly Industrial and Rural.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in 

the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Industrial uses as set forth within the Planned Unit Development 

Master Plan. 
  

219



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 8 

 

 
Project: MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK  

Owned by:  Mid-Florida Freezer Warehouses LTD; Florida Express Trucking, Inc.; Eagles Landing at 

Ocoee, LLC 

Located:         East side of Hermit Smith Road, South of General Electric Road, west of SR 429 

Parcel ID#s: 01-21-27-0000-00-060; 06-21-28-7172-12-020; 06-21-28-7172-12-041;  

06-21-28-7172-12-060; 01-21-27-0000-00-030; 06-21-28-7172-13-000;  

12-21-27-0000-00-010; 12-21-27-0000-00-018; 12-21-27-0000-00-015;  

12-21-27-0000-00-017; 12-21-27-0000-00-021 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 220



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 9 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

221



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

MID-FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT  

PAGE 10 

 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

222



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2709 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2678, WHICH AMENDS THE ADOPTED “MID-
FLORIDA LOGISTICS PARK PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) 
MASTER PLAN” FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SR 429, SOUTH OF GENERAL 
ELECTRIC ROAD, AND EAST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD, 
COMPRISING 189.00 ACRES MORE OR LESS; OWNED BY MID 
FLORIDA FREEZER WAREHOUSES LTD, FLORIDA EXPRESS 
TRUCKING, INC., AND EAGLES LANDING AT OCOEE, LLC; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, to manage growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within 
the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Dave Schmitt Engineering, Inc. has requested to amend, repeal and replace  
Ordinance 2678, adopted on October 17, 2018, and replace the adopted Mid-Florida Logistics 
Park Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan through and by Ordinance No. 2678; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2709 has been found to be consistent with the City of 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 
designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code, and with the following development standards and provisions, and subject to the following 
zoning provisions: 
 

A. The following uses are permitted within the PUD district: 
 

1. All permitted uses allowed under I-1 zoning district; 

 

2. The uses allowed by the “Developer’s Agreement for Development of Copart, Inc. 

Apopka Property,” as recorded as document number 20160275220 within the official 

records of Orange County, Florida, shall be available uses within this PUD if the 

Copart Developer’s Agreement is terminated with the mutual consent of City Council 

and the property owner subject to the Copart Developer’s Agreement; 

 

3. Long-term outdoor vehicle (bus, car, cab, and truck) storage and terminal use is 

permitted within the PUD as an accessory use if said vehicle parking is associated 

with an enclosed building having a minimum floor area of 10,000 square feet and 

located within the same Lot or abutting lots.  All vehicles stored outdoors must be 

operable.   

223



ORDINANCE NO. 2709 

PAGE 2 
 

 

  

B. The following uses are Prohibited within the PUD district:  

 

1. Flea markets 

 

2. Day-care centers except when provided solely for on-site employees  

 

3. Churches 

 

4. Public or private schools (K-12th grade) except when located within a stand-alone 

building 

 

5. Community residential homes  

 

6. All prohibited uses for the I-1 zoning district 

 

C. Special Exceptions: As set forth by the I-1 zoning district except if listed as a permitted 

or prohibited uses above. 
 

D.  Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 
Exhibit “B”.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Master Site Plan 
and the Land Development Code, the Master Site Plan shall preside.  Any proposed 
revision to the Master Site Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant to the Land 
Development Code. 

 
E. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of 
the Master Site Plan/PDP provisions will expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final 
Development Plan; 

 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal 

of new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described Property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby PUD as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code: 
 
 Legal Description: See Exhibit “A” 
 
 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Apopka, Florida. 
  
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of 
Apopka, Florida, to include said designation. 

224



ORDINANCE NO. 2709 

PAGE 3 
 

 

 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance.  This Ordinance repeals and replaces Ordinance Number 2678. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  February 6, 2019 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
 

                       
 

        
_____________________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Joseph Byrd, City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  December 21, 2018 
       February 1, 2019  
 
  

225



ORDINANCE NO. 2709 

PAGE 4 
 

 

Exhibit “A” Legal Description  
 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

27 EAST AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 

27 EAST, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 1; THENCE RUN S00°14'22"W 

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4, 60.00 FEET TO A POINT 60.00 

FEET SOUTH OF, WHEN MEASURED PERPENDICULAR TO, THE NORTH LINE OF 

SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN N89°59'32"E PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTH 

LINE, 30.00 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD 

BEING THE EAST LINE OF A 30.00 RIGHT OF WAY RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 633, 

PAGE 385, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE N89°59'32"E ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY 

LINE OF GENERAL ELECTRIC ROAD, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 966, PAGE 424, 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 800.00 FEET; THENCE 

CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE N86°30'41"E, 494.11 FEET TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 4, BLOCK "L", MAP OF PLYMOUTH, AS 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK B, PAGES 17-18, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN N89°59'32"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 

BLOCK "L", 872.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF SAID BLOCK 

"L"; THENCE RUN S00°08'04"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 AND LOT 8 OF 

SAID BLOCK "L", 852.07 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID 

BLOCK 'L"; THENCE RUN N89°59'14"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 9, 

305.56 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 429 (WESTERN 

BELTWAY); THENCE RUN THE FOLLOWING SIX (6) COURSES ALONG SAID WEST 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE S03°11'39"E, 222.83 FEET TO A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 

WEST; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL 

ANGLE OF 06°55'43", A RADIUS OF 7850.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 949.26 FEET, A 

CHORD BEARING OF S04°57'27"W AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 948.68 FEET; 

S08°25'18"W, 432.58 FEET; S12°48'38"W, 196.00 FEET; S07°57'36"W, 604.02 FEET; 

S15°57'29"W, 30.55 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE RUN 

S89°58'43"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 

1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 12, 1583.51 

FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 

1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN S00°26'22"W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 12, 1316.77 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN S89°53'17"W ALONG THE 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4, 124.64 FEET TO THE EASTERN BOUNDARY OF LANDS DEDICATED 

TO ST. JOHN'S RIVER WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PROPERTY PER OFFICIAL 

RECORDS BOOK 7711, PAGE 4081, OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 7786, PAGE 3958, AND 

OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5586, PAGE 2510; THENCE RUN THE FOLLOWING 

FIFTEEN (15) COURSES ALONG SAID EASTERN  BOUNDARY OF LANDS 

226



ORDINANCE NO. 2709 

PAGE 5 
 

 

DEDICATED TO ST. JOHN'S RIVER WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT; N34°51'34"W, 

185.69 FEET; N09°14'28"W, 154.82 FEET; N57°52'23"E, 35.05 FEET; N47°21'45"W, 206.75 

FEET; N46°03'10"W, 257.06 FEET; S64°40'44"W, 30.12 FEET; N33°59'32"W, 130.01 FEET; 

S00°32'05"W, 79.45 FEET; N19°49'43"W, 669.98 FEET; N63°05'41"W, 470.00 FEET; 

N00°32'05"E, 19.26 FEET; N38°59'11"W, 151.57 FEET; N20°38'44"W, 140.91 FEET; 

N32°02'37"W, 141.62 FEET; N24°49'10"W, 65.79 FEET; N77°14'37"W, 124.93 FEET TO THE 

NORTH LINE OF AFORESAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 

12; THENCE RUN S89°54'33"E ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 1028.15 FEET TO THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE RUN 

S89°58'53"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, 

333.31 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 3/4 OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN N00°11'01"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST 

3/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, 659.17 FEET TO THE SOUTH 

LINE OF THE NORTH 660.00 FEET OF SAID EAST 3/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN S89°59'40"E, PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE, 

200.00 FEET TO A LINE 200.00 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST 3/4 OF 

THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN N00°11'01"E PARALLEL 

WITH SAID WEST LINE, 720.00 FEET TO A LINE 30.00 FEET NORTH OF, WHEN 

MEASURED PERPENDICULAR TO, THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 1, BEING THE NORTH LINE OF A 60.00 FOOT 

RIGHT OF WAY RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 889, PAGE 331, PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN N89°59'40"W ALONG SAID 

NORTH LINE OF RIGHT OF WAY, 501.97 FEET TO A LINE 30.00 FEET EAST OF, WHEN 

MEASURED PERPENDICULAR TO, THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

SOUTHEAST 1/4, BEING THE EAST LINE OF A 30.00 RIGHT OF WAY RECORDED IN 

DEED BOOK 633, PAGE 385, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

THENCE RUN N00°14'22"E ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 1199.11 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINS 188.893 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS. 
 
Parcel ID Numbers:   01-21-27-0000-00-030; 01-21-27-0000-00-060; 06-21-28-7172-12-020; 

06-21-28-7172-12-041; 06-21-28-7172-12-060; 06-21-28-7172-13-000; 
12-21-27-0000-00-010; 12-21-27-0000-00-015; 12-21-27-0000-00-
017;12-21-27-0000-00-018; 12-21-27-0000-00-021 

 
Containing 188.893 +/- Acres 

 

 

227



ORDINANCE NO. 2709 - EXHIBIT "B"

228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



   

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBIT(S): Ordinance No. 2710 

X OTHER: Ordinance  Sketch/Legal Description 

  Vicinity Map 

  Aerial Map 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2710 – VACATING A 30-FOOT WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-

OF-WAY, EAST OF S.R. 414 AND WEST OF SOUTH HAWTHORNE 

AVENUE 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2710 – FIRST READING - VACATE A 30-FOOT WIDE 

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY, EAST OF S.R. 414 AND WEST OF SOUTH 

HAWTHORNE AVENUE; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 

AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 

OWNER:  City of Apopka 

APPLICANT:  Emerson Point Phase II, LLC 

LOCATION:  East of S.R. 414 and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 

PARCEL ID #: N/A 

EXISTING USE: Unimproved right-of-way 

TRACT SIZE:  0.25 +/- acre; 10,993 square feet +\- 

 

 

 

 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VACATE\Emerson Point Ph II ROW Vacate\4 City Council Hearings 247



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VACATE – EMERSON POINTE PH. II ROW 

PAGE 2 

 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant\Undeveloped 

East (County) Residential Low R-1A S. Hawthorne Ave\ 

Single Family Residential 

South (City) FLIP* ZIP* (A-1 County) Vacant 

West (City) ROW\Mixed Use Mixed-EC S.R. 414\Vacant 

*Recently annexed into the City. City Future Land Use Designation and Zoning not yet assigned. 
 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  Applicant is seeking to vacate a 30-foot wide unimproved public right-of-
way with an area of about 0.25 acre, located east of S.R. 414 and west of South Hawthorne Avenue.  The 
applicant intends to combine this land area with those larger parcels to its north and south, both owned by 
the applicant, for development. 
 

The Public Services Department has evaluated the site and has no objection to the right-of-way being 

vacated.  The City has letters on file from all utility providers indicating no objections to the proposed 

vacate.   The vacated right-of-way will be transferred to the property owner to the north and south, which 

is the same owner – Emerson Point II LLC. A replat will be required to combine this with the north and 

southern parcels and shall be approved by the City Council. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 6, 2019 - City Council - 1
st
 Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

February 20, 2019 - City Council - 2
nd

 Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

January 18, 2019 - Public Hearing Notice 

February 8, 2019 - Ordinance Heading Ad    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee does not object to the request by Emerson Point Phase II to vacate 

a 30-foot wide unimproved public right-of-way, as described in the legal description. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2710 and hold it over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

February 20, 2019. 

 

248



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VACATE – EMERSON POINTE PH. II ROW 

PAGE 3 

 

  

249



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VACATE – EMERSON POINTE PH. II ROW 

PAGE 4 

 

 

250



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VACATE – EMERSON POINTE PH. II ROW 

PAGE 5 

 

Owner:  City of Apopka 

Applicant:   Emerson Point Phase II, LLC 

Location:  East of S.R. 414 and west of South Hawthorne Avenue 

Total Acre(s):  0.25 +/- acre  
 

VICINITY MAP 
Emerson Point Phase II (30-foot Wide Right-of-Way to be vacated) 

 

 

 
  

Subject Property 

251



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 

VACATE – EMERSON POINTE PH. II ROW 

PAGE 6 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
Emerson Point Phase II (30-foot Wide Right-of-Way to be vacated) 

 

 

 
 

 

Subject Property 

252



ORDINANCE NO. 2710 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, TO VACATE A 30-FOOT 

WIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY, LOCATED NORTH OF EAST S.R. 414 AND 

WEST OF SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE IN SECTION 21, 

TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 

SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has 

been filed by the City of Apopka, to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim 

alleyway as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, CenturyLink (f/k/a Embarq), Duke Energy, Charter Spectrum 

Communications and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no objection to the abandonment 

of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances 

there exists no public need for this existing easement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 

Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said 

existing easement. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit 

“A,” shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

A PORTION OF A 30 FOOT WIDE RIGHT OF WAY AS DESCRIBED IN 

DEED BOOK 785, PAGE 113, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA LYING IN SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 

EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 

21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 00°34'48" WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 21, FOR A DISTANCE OF 

1296.10 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 

253



ORDINANCE NO. 2710 

PAGE 2 

 

OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 21, SAID POINT LYING ON 

THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HAWTHORNE AVENUE, AS 

DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 30, PAGE 57, PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN NORTH 

89°22'09" WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 21, AND ALONG THE SAID 

WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HAWTHORNE AVENUE FOR A 

DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT 

LYING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 30 FOOT WIDE RIGHT OF WAY 

AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 785, PAGE 113; THENCE RUN NORTH 

89°22'09" WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 21, AND ALONG THE SOUTH 

LINE OF SAID 30 FOOT WIDE RIGHT OF WAY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED 

BOOK 785, PAGE 113, FOR A DISTANCE OF 351.18 FEET TO A POINT ON 

THE NORTH LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 

414, AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS DOCUMENT NUMBER 

20170079066, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

THENCE RUN NORTH 44°52'33" WEST, ALONG THE SAID NORTH 

LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 414, FOR A 

DISTANCE OF 42.81 FEET, TO A POINT LYING ON THE NORTH LINE OF 

SAID 30 FOOT WIDE RIGHT OF WAY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 

785, PAGE 113; THENECE RUN SOUTH 89°22'09" EAST, ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF SAID 30 FOOT WIDE RIGHT OF WAY AS DESCRIBED 

IN DEED BOOK 785, PAGE 113, FOR A DISTANCE OF 381.69 FEET, TO A 

POINT ON THE SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HAWTHORNE 

AVENUE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°34'48" WEST, ALONG SAID WEST 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HAWTHORNE AVENUE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 

30.00 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING 10,993.00 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 

 

 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and 

the Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 

recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

 

 Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 

of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to 

invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or 

subsection or part of this Ordinance. 

 

 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed. 

 

254



ORDINANCE NO. 2710 

PAGE 3 

 

 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 

adoption. 

 

      READ FIRST TIME:  February 6, 2019  
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  February 20, 2019  
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Bryan Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  January 18, 2019 and February 8, 2019 
  

255



ORDINANCE NO. 2710 

PAGE 4 

 

RDINANCE NO. 2710 

EXHIBIT “A”. 
 

City of Apopka 

Proposed Vacate of Right-of-Way 

 

 

256



 

 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Annexation  Aerial Map 

    Ordinance No. 2712 
  

 

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2712 – ANNEXATION – 3251 HARRY STREET 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2712 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – 3251 HARRY 

STREET; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: City of Apopka  

  

LOCATION:   3251 Harry Street  

 

PARCEL ID NO:  36-20-27-7189-01-200 

 

EXISTING USE:  Apopka Lift Station  

 

TRACT SIZE:   1.22 +/- acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief  

 

 

  

257



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 
3251 HARRY STREET ANNEXATION  

PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning 
Designations.  Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, 
and through action by the City Council. 
 
Parcels to the east and southeast of this City-owned parcel were annexed into the City on December 5, 
2018, making this site now contiguous to the City’s jurisdictional boundary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify Orange County 15 days 
prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on 
January 3, 2019. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
January 18, 2019 
January 25, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 6, 2019 (1:30 PM) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

February 20, 2019 (7:00 PM) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
the City of Apopka. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2712, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
February 20, 2019. 
  

258



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 
3251 HARRY STREET ANNEXATION  

PAGE 3 

 

 
 

ANNEXATION 

City of Apopka 

3251 Harry Street 

 
Property Description: PLYMOUTH HILLS, PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 64, LOT 19 (LESS THE  

   WEST 60-FEET) & LOTS 20 THROUGH 24, BLOCK A 

Parcel ID Nos.:  36-20-27-7189-01-200 

Total Acres:  1.22  ac +/-    

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
(THIS MAP IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO SCALE) 

  
259



CITY COUNCIL – FEBRUARY 6, 2019 
3251 HARRY STREET ANNEXATION  

PAGE 4 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 
 

 
 

260



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2712 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY THE CITY OF APOPKA; LOCATED AT 3251 HARRY 

STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the 

City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 3251 Harry Street; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I: That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 1.22 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Property Description: 

PLYMOUTH HILLS, PLAT BOOK 3, PAGE 64, LOT 19 (LESS THE WEST 

60-FEET) & LOTS 20 THROUGH 24, BLOCK A 

 

Parcel ID No:  36-20-27-7189-01-200 

 

 SECTION II: That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III: That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 

described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

261



ORDINANCE NO. 2712 

PAGE 2  
 

SECTION V: That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 

the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for 

Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of 

the State of Florida.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  January 18, 2019 and January 25, 2019 

 

READ FIRST TIME: February 6, 2019 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:      

 

 

 

Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

262



ORDINANCE NO. 2712 

PAGE 2  
 

ANNEXATION 

3251 Harry Street 

 
Property Description: PLYMOUTH HILLS 3/64 LOT 19 (LESS W 60 FT) & LOTS 20 THRU 24  

   BLK A 

Parcel ID No:  36-20-27-7189-01-200 

Total Acres:  1.22 +/-      

 

Vicinity Map 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(THIS MAP IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO SCALE.) 

 

Legend 

   Subject property 

  City Jurisdiction 

  County Jurisdiction 

 

263



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: February 6, 2019 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Exhibit A & B 

  X  OTHER: Resolution No. 2019-03                
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2019 – 03 – AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
 

REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2019-03 TOTALING 

$9,292,726.83 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On September 19, 2018, by Resolution No. 2018-19 the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal 

year 2018/2019.  The City has committed to expenditures and has experienced unanticipated 

revenues/expenditures through the current fiscal year that need to be reflected in the current budget.  

Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body amend the budget in the same manner as 

the original budget is adopted. 

 

Exhibit A – This amendment includes changes in funding and appropriations for fiscal year 2018 

purchase order carryovers, CRA funding carry overs for the Alonzo Williams Community Center Project, 

SCADA system funding, Police Department Donations and Events, and the Stryker Flex Financial capital 

lease debt service for EMS equipment. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

FY 2018 - 2019 Budget Amendment #4 includes funding from reserves from general fund, CRA Fund 

and other revenue sources such as donations and fees.   
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2019-03 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

264



 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-03 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2018 AND ENDING 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that 

the Budget for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 should be amended; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body 

amend the budgets in the same manner as the original budget is adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal year 2018/2019 

through resolution on September 19, 2018.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the Budget for the City of Apopka, Florida, and Fiscal Year 

2018/2019 is hereby amended as indicated in Exhibit A & Exhibit B – with an amendment 

totaling $9,292,726.83 which are hereby attached and made part of this Resolution by reference 

thereto. 

SECTION 2: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon final 

passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS 6
TH

 DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2019 

 

      

 CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

______________________________                                      
                      BRYAN NELSON, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
LINDA GOFF, CITY CLERK 
 265



Date : _______________ Date Entered:

Prepared by: _________   Entered By:

Approved by: _________      Batch #:

Entry Code: __________    Posted By:

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM

See Exhibit B RESERVES FROM PRIOR YEAR POS 7,886,384.83   

See Exhibit B ATTACHED PO REQUESTS 7,886,384.83   

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM

610-389-0009 CARRY-OVER APPROPRATIONS 621,114.00      

610-9011-581-9150 TRANSFER OUT TO THE GRANT FUND 621,114.00      

150-381-0610 TRANSFER IN FROM CRA FUND 621,114.00      

150-3613-572-6200 ALONZO WILLIAMS COMMUNITY CENTER (CDBG) 621,114.00      

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM

403-343-6000 SCADA SYSTEM FEES 73,000.00        

403-8019-536-6400 EQUIPMENT & MACHINERY 73,000.00        

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM

106-366-9003 DONATIONS - POLICE DEPARTMENT 23,328.00        

106-2220-521-5203 OP - SUPPLIES - DONATIONS 15,176.00        

106-2220-521-8201 POLICE DONATIONS 8,152.00          

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM

001-389-0010 FUNDING FROM RESERVES 67,786.00        

001-9011-590-7194 STRYKER UPGRADES #820-02583328-002 17,784.00        

001-9011-590-7195 STRYKER UPGRADES #820-02583328-003 50,002.00        

TOTAL 9,292,726.83   9,292,726.83   

COMMENTS: RESOLUTION 2019-03

BUDGET AMENDMENT IS FOR THE CRA FUNDING ASSOCIATED WITH THE ALONZO WILLIAMS CDBG GRANT.  THIS 

TRANSACTION WILL ALLOW FOR THE ACTUAL MOVEMENT OF FUNDS FROM THE CRA FUND TO THE GRANTS FUND 

WHICH WILL ALLOW FOR THE APPROPRIATIONS.

BUDGET AMENDMENT IS FOR THE PURCHASE ORDER CARRY OVERS FROM THE 2018 FISCAL YEAR INTO THE 2019 

FISCAL YEAR.  THE ATTACHED LIST OF PURCHASE ORDERS ARE PURCHASE ORDERS THAT ARE RELATED TO 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS OR RELATED CAPITAL PROJECTS.  

BUDGET AMENDMENT IS TO RECOGNIZE THE FUNDS RECEIVED BY DEVELOPERS TO IMPROVE OUR SCADA SYSTEMS IN 

OUR LIFT STATIONS.  THE DEVELOPERS PROVIDE THE FUNDING AND THE CITY MAKES THE IMPROVEMENTS.  THIS 

TRANSACTION WILL RECOGNIZE THE FUNDS THAT HAVE ALREADY BEEN RECEIVED AND THE CORRESPONDING 

APPROPRIATION.

BUDGET AMENDMENT IS TO RECOGNIZE THE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S REVENUES RAISED FOR CYSTIC FIBROSIS AND 

SHOP WITH THE COP EVENTS AND THE ASSOCIATED APROPRIATION.  THIS FUND WAS NOT FULLY FUNDED BECAUSE 

THE INTENT IS FOR ADDITIONAL APPROVALS TO BE GIVEN AS NEEDED.  THE CYSTIC FIBROSIS EVENT COLLECTED 

$12,728 WITH ASSOCIATED EXPENDITURES SUCH AS T-SHIRTS, BANNERS AND TROPHIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,576, 

LEAVING $8,152 TO BE DONATED DIRECTLY TO THE NON-PROFIT.  SHOP WITH THE COP RAISED OVER $10,600 DUE TO 

GIFT CARDS BEING DONATED BUT THE CITY EXPENDED ONLY $10,600 IN ACTUAL FUNDS COLLECTED.

BUDGET AMENDMENT FUNDING FROM RESERVES THE STRYKER FLEX FINANCIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS CAPITAL 

LEASE DEBT AGREEMENT FOR FY 2019.

EXHIBIT A

CITY OF APOPKA

BUDGET AMENDMENT

Wednesday, February 6, 2019

Budget Resolution 2019-03

266



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF APOPKA

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PURCHASE ORDER CARRY FORWARDS INTO FISCAL YEAR 2019

Account Description PO # PO Date

Prior 

Year 

Line Item Item Description Amount Vendor # Vendor Name First Enc Date

001-1010-512-6200         BUILDINGS                               18-08367 9/19/2018  1 exterior spot-lighting bldg   2,500.00 ILLUM005 ILLUMINATIONS USA             9/19/2018

001-1020-512-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-08514 9/28/2018  1 AYW CareerSource Payment      27,267.51 CAREE005 CAREERSOURCE CENTRAL FLORIDA  9/28/2018

001-1022-519-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-03642 2/14/2018  1 Engineer Roof Assessment FS 4 2,850.00 GARLA005 GARLAND/DBS, INC.             2/14/2018

001-1022-519-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-07582 8/9/2018  1 City Hall (ADM 3) Clean Carpet 2,850.00 JANIK005 JANI- KING OF ORLANDO         8/9/2018

001-1022-519-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-07582 8/9/2018  2 City Hall (ADM 3) Clean Tile  950.00 JANIK005 JANI- KING OF ORLANDO         8/9/2018

001-1022-519-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIP            18-00390 10/13/2017  1                               750.00 T3CUS005 T3 CUSTOM FABRICATION, INC.   10/13/2017

001-1022-519-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIP            18-02164 12/14/2017  2                               164.00 GRAIN005 GRAINGER                      12/14/2017

001-1022-519-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIP            18-04469 4/3/2018  6 Blanket                       90.31 GRAIN005 GRAINGER                      4/3/2018

001-1022-519-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIP            18-04867 4/23/2018  1 Fire Station #1 Ice Maker     520.00 SERVC005 SERVCO APPLIANCE SALES& SERVIC 4/23/2018

001-1022-519-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIP            18-06312 6/5/2018  1 FI/IT Side Door               818.00 DYNAF005 DYNAFIRE, INC                 6/5/2018

001-1022-519-6300         INFRASTRUCTURE                          17-04030 5/10/2017 Y 177 Security and Fire Alarm System 21,551.34 SPACE015 SPACE COAST FIRE AND SAFETY   5/10/2017

001-1030-512-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-07377 7/31/2018  2 Recodification of Code        7,582.03 MUNIC005 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION    7/31/2018

001-1030-512-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-07377 7/31/2018  3 Recodification of Code        450.00 MUNIC005 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION    7/31/2018

001-1030-512-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-07377 7/31/2018  4 Recodification of Code        9,797.97 MUNIC005 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION    7/31/2018

001-1120-513-6200         BUILDINGS                               18-08515 9/28/2018  1 2 ADDITIONAL OFFICE SPACE FIN 2,480.00 BAWAG005 B.A. WAGNER, INC              9/28/2018

001-1120-513-6200         BUILDINGS                               18-08515 9/28/2018  2 2 ADDITIONAL OFFICE AC/ELEC   600.00 BAWAG005 B.A. WAGNER, INC              9/28/2018

001-1120-513-6200         BUILDINGS                               18-08515 9/28/2018  3 CONTINGENCY                   308.00 BAWAG005 B.A. WAGNER, INC              9/28/2018

001-1120-513-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08486 9/27/2018  1 FINANCE SPACE SAVING FILE SYST 4,150.00 TIGER020 TIGERMEDICAL                  9/27/2018

001-1170-513-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   17-06561 9/27/2017 Y 1 C&C STUDY                     25,000.00 MGTCO005 MGT CONSULTING GROUP          9/27/2017

001-2120-522-4400         RENTALS AND LEASES                      18-07240 7/26/2018  4 Temporary Station 6           1,572.35 IBERI005 IBERIA BANK                   7/26/2018

001-2120-522-6200         BUILDINGS                               18-06143 5/24/2018  2 FD 4 Roof Relacement          16,733.00 GARLA005 GARLAND/DBS, INC.             5/24/2018

001-2120-522-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-00474 10/18/2017  3 Quint 6 for Station 6         350,218.00 ROSEN015 ROSENBAUER SOUTH DAKOTA, LLC  10/18/2017

001-2120-522-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07209 7/25/2018  1 Mid Mount Tower Truck         1,018,702.00 ROSEN015 ROSENBAUER SOUTH DAKOTA, LLC  7/25/2018

001-2120-522-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07362 7/30/2018  1 Tower Truck Equipment         22,000.00 MUNIC010 MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY   7/30/2018

001-2120-522-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07363 7/30/2018  1 Tower Truck Equipment         51,931.00 MUNIC015 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES  7/30/2018

001-2120-522-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08358 9/18/2018  1 Cables for Radio System       1,152.06 MOTOR010 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.      9/18/2018

001-2130-526-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-07734 8/17/2018  1 Mass Casulty Floor Mounts     5,248.80 STRYK005 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION     8/17/2018

001-2130-526-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07208 7/25/2018  1 Life Support Ambulance        176,250.00 REVRT005 REV RTC, INC.                 7/25/2018

001-3612-572-4600         REPAIRS & MAINT. - BLDG.& EQUIPMENT     18-06531 6/22/2018  2 Irrigation repairs / lightning 50.65 TWCDI005 TWC DISTRIBUTORS              6/22/2018

001-3613-572-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-08522 9/28/2018  1 Task 1. Estimating            3,360.00 CH2MH005 CH2M HILL ENGINEERS INC       9/28/2018

001-3613-572-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-08522 9/28/2018  2 Task 2. Bidding Service       4,820.00 CH2MH005 CH2M HILL ENGINEERS INC       9/28/2018

001-3613-572-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-08522 9/28/2018  3 Task 3. Construction          26,790.00 CH2MH005 CH2M HILL ENGINEERS INC       9/28/2018

001-4020-515-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-02674 1/11/2018  10 Prof Ser Con't LDC Amendment  5,999.99 CLARI005 CLARION ASSOCIATES, LLC       1/11/2018

001-4020-515-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-02674 1/11/2018  11 Prof Ser Con't LDC Amendment  19,780.31 CLARI005 CLARION ASSOCIATES, LLC       1/11/2018

001-5110-519-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-08437 9/25/2018  1 IBM MaaS360 License Renewal   5,940.00 IBMCO005 INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINE 9/25/2018

001-5110-519-6300         INFRASTRUCTURE                          18-08583 9/30/2018  1 WIFI ACCESS POINTS AT NWREC   14,500.00 RAPID005 RAPID SYSTEMS                 9/30/2018

001-5110-519-6800         INTANGIBLE ASSETS                       18-03876 2/26/2018  7 CIMS Cloud Implementation     1,687.50 RAMAK005 RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.    2/26/2018

001-5110-519-6800         INTANGIBLE ASSETS                       18-03876 2/26/2018  8 CIMS Cloud Implementation     1,687.50 RAMAK005 RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.    2/26/2018

001-5110-519-6800         INTANGIBLE ASSETS                       18-03876 2/26/2018  9 CIMS Cloud Implementation     650.00 RAMAK005 RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.    2/26/2018

001-5110-519-6800         INTANGIBLE ASSETS                       18-03876 2/26/2018  10 CIMS Cloud Implementation     1,010.00 RAMAK005 RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC.    2/26/2018

101-3412-541-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-08364 9/19/2018  1 #767-D Vantage TS2 IM         3,045.15 ITERI005 ITERIS, INC                   9/19/2018

101-3412-541-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-08364 9/19/2018  2 #765 Iteris Vantage Edge 2    7,272.00 ITERI005 ITERIS, INC                   9/19/2018

101-3412-541-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-08364 9/19/2018  3 #771 Iteris Vantage SmartSpan 3,918.80 ITERI005 ITERIS, INC                   9/19/2018

101-3412-541-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-08364 9/19/2018  4 767-B Vantage TS-1 Rack       555.50 ITERI005 ITERIS, INC                   9/19/2018

101-3412-541-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES                      18-02149 12/14/2017  4 Blanket PO for Sod            189.00 LAKEJ005 LAKE JEM FARMS INC.           12/14/2017

101-3412-541-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-02656 1/11/2018  5 2Y Support for Warrants 10    82.35 TRAFF005 TRAFFICWARE, LLC              1/11/2018

101-3412-541-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-02656 1/11/2018  6 Synchro plus SimTraffic 10    329.90 TRAFF005 TRAFFICWARE, LLC              1/11/2018

101-3412-541-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-03656 2/14/2018  1 Backup Camera for 37-1878     1,341.82 MAUDL005 MAUDLIN INTERNATIONAL         2/14/2018

101-3414-541-3400         OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES              18-01347 11/9/2017  16 Inmate Program-Blanket W109501 14,877.25 DEPTO005 DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS          11/9/2017

102-3413-541-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-03965 3/5/2018  2 Traffic Study - NW Rec Cir    3,068.75 LUKET005 LUKE TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERIN 3/5/2018

102-3413-541-3112         TRAFFIC COUNTS                          18-00502 10/20/2017  4 2017 Trans Concurrency        1,040.00 LUKET005 LUKE TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERIN 10/20/2017

Page 1 of 3

267



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF APOPKA

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PURCHASE ORDER CARRY FORWARDS INTO FISCAL YEAR 2019

Account Description PO # PO Date

Prior 

Year 

Line Item Item Description Amount Vendor # Vendor Name First Enc Date

102-3413-541-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          17-04928 7/11/2017  7 6th St. - Geo tech Testing    224.55 UNIVE035 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SCIENCES 11/6/2017

102-3413-541-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-07541 8/7/2018  4 Town Center Roadway Design    137,627.03 TAURU005 TAURUS APOPKA CITY CENTER     8/7/2018

102-3413-541-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-07541 8/7/2018  5 Town Center Roadway Design    0.10 TAURU005 TAURUS APOPKA CITY CENTER     8/7/2018

102-3413-541-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08623 9/30/2018  1 Vick & Martin Road Improvement 163,300.00 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

104-3614-572-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          17-04005 5/8/2017  14 Engineering Svcs.             816.00 BOOTH010 BOOTH, ERN, STRAUGHAN & HIOTT 1/17/2018

104-3614-572-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          17-04005 5/8/2017 Y 15 Engineering Svcs.             4,056.00 BOOTH010 BOOTH, ERN, STRAUGHAN & HIOTT 5/8/2017

104-3614-572-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-04553 4/10/2018  10 KLN Splash Pad                4,988.50 FREEP005 FREEPORT FOUNTAINS, LLC       4/10/2018

120-3151-538-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-04744 4/18/2018  2 24" CMP Replacement Lk Marion 764.14 PROVI005 PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION & DEVE 4/18/2018

150-1020-512-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES - HEROES & APOPKA    18-07684 8/13/2018  3 HEROES Supplies               9.25 IBERI005 IBERIA BANK                   8/13/2018

150-1020-512-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES - HEROES & APOPKA    18-07684 8/13/2018  4 HEROES Supplies FYE 18 CO     360.06 IBERI005 IBERIA BANK                   9/30/2018

150-1020-512-5210         OPERATING SUPPLIES - SUMMER YOUTH       18-08624 9/30/2018  1 Dollar Wise FYE 18 Carry Over 547.48 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

150-3514-572-6200         RECREATION ATHL PARKS AND RECRE         18-08368 9/19/2018  2 15% Approved Drawings         52,374.75 BIGSP005 BIG SPAN STRUCTURES, LLC      9/19/2018

150-3514-572-6200         RECREATION ATHL PARKS AND RECRE         18-08368 9/19/2018  3 25% Receipt of Materials      87,291.25 BIGSP005 BIG SPAN STRUCTURES, LLC      9/19/2018

150-3514-572-6200         RECREATION ATHL PARKS AND RECRE         18-08368 9/19/2018  4 30% Delivery to Premises      104,749.50 BIGSP005 BIG SPAN STRUCTURES, LLC      9/19/2018

150-3514-572-6200         RECREATION ATHL PARKS AND RECRE         18-08368 9/19/2018  5 20% Substantial Completion    69,833.00 BIGSP005 BIG SPAN STRUCTURES, LLC      9/19/2018

150-3514-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS - RECREATION APOPKA AAC    18-08625 9/30/2018  1 AAC FRDAP FYE18 Carry Over    50,000.00 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6200         ALONZO WILLIAMS COMMUNITY CENTER (CDBG) 18-01160 10/31/2017  10 BLANKET CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER 35,500.00 FREDF005 FRED FOX ENTERPRISES, INC.    11/1/2017

150-3613-572-6200         ALONZO WILLIAMS COMMUNITY CENTER (CDBG) 18-08590 9/30/2018  1 ASBESTOS SURVEY WILLIAMS PARK 1,600.00 UNIVE035 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SCIENCES 9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6200         ALONZO WILLIAMS COMMUNITY CENTER (CDBG) 18-08626 9/30/2018  1 ALONZO WILLIAMS CDBG FYE18 CO 696,601.16 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6303         IMPROVEMENTS - KITLAND PARK (FRDAP)     18-08620 9/30/2018  1 A-FRAME PICNIC TABLE          4,354.00 RJTHO005 RJ THOMAS MFG CO INC          9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6303         IMPROVEMENTS - KITLAND PARK (FRDAP)     18-08621 9/30/2018  1 BENCHES                       5,574.89 PRIDE005 PRIDE ENTERPRISES             9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6303         IMPROVEMENTS - KITLAND PARK (FRDAP)     18-08627 9/30/2018  1 KITLAND PARK FRDAP FYE 18 CO  2,556.28 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08494 9/27/2018  7 KLN Trails Change order #1    6,416.65 SMITH080 SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD     9/27/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08494 9/27/2018  8 KLN Trails Change order #2    1,674.00 SMITH080 SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD     9/27/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08494 9/27/2018  9 KLN Trails Change order #3    3,556.80 SMITH080 SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD     9/27/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08494 9/27/2018  10 KLN Trails Project & Grant    41,082.77 SMITH080 SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD     9/27/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08494 9/27/2018  11 KLN Trails Project & Grant    39,608.13 SMITH080 SMITH BROOMFIELD & HOWARD     9/27/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08618 9/30/2018  1 KIT LAND NELSON TRAILS GRANT  630.00 UNIVE035 UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SCIENCES 9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08619 9/30/2018  1 CURB STOPS                    2,974.40 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

150-3613-572-6304         IMPROVEMENTS-RECREATION TRAILS KITLAND  18-08628 9/30/2018  1 KITLAND TRAILS FYE18 CO       9,029.29 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

401-3010-539-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-02497 12/29/2017  7 Office Furniture              1,358.38 COMME015 COMMERCIAL DESIGN SERVICES    12/29/2017

401-3111-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          17-03739 4/25/2017 Y 8 MPL Well #1 Modif. Design     88,319.73 REISS005 REISS ENGINEERING INC         4/25/2017

401-3111-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-01929 12/7/2017  9 Mt Plymouth Well #4 Design    11,377.50 REISS005 REISS ENGINEERING INC         12/7/2017

401-3111-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-01929 12/7/2017  10 Mt Plymouth Well #4 Design    74,791.50 REISS005 REISS ENGINEERING INC         12/7/2017

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07174 7/24/2018  1 300 kW Generator with Install 99,222.00 TRADE020 TRADEWINDS POWER CORPORATION  7/24/2018

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08284 9/13/2018  1 Grossenbacher WTP upgrade     32,319.91 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                9/13/2018

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08284 9/13/2018  2 Grossenbacher WTP upgrade     2,170.00 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                9/13/2018

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08284 9/13/2018  3 Grossenbacher WTP upgrade     844.42 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                9/13/2018

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08284 9/13/2018  4 Grossenbacher WTP upgrade     4,832.63 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                9/13/2018

401-3111-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-08284 9/13/2018  5 Grossenbacher WTP upgrade     5,571.69 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                9/13/2018

401-3131-536-4300         UTILITY SERVICES                        18-07542 8/7/2018  2 Land Fill Charges             1,359.10 MIDFL010 MID FLORIDA MATERIALS         8/7/2018

401-3131-536-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-02475 12/27/2017  3 Construction trailers         156.00 DTRCK005 DELAND TRUCK CENTER, INC      12/27/2017

401-3141-533-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES                      18-06719 6/27/2018  1 Prorated Year 11              2,332.00 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                6/27/2018

401-3141-533-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES                      18-06719 6/27/2018  2 Prorated Year 12              12,118.68 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                6/27/2018

401-3141-533-5200         OPERATING SUPPLIES                      18-06719 6/27/2018  3 Prorated Year 14              225.00 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                6/27/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-06386 6/8/2018  1 Vaccon Debris Dumping         1,500.00 TANKS005 SHELLEY'S SEPTIC TANKS        6/8/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-06499 6/20/2018  2 Drill Mud removal Orange St.  877.73 PETRO010 PETROTECH SOUTHEAST, INC.     6/20/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08592 9/30/2018  4 STUTZMAN CT WATER MAIN EXTENSI 91,638.00 STAGE010 STAGE DOOR II, INC.           9/30/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08592 9/30/2018  5 STUTZMAN CT WATER MAIN EXTENSI 60,220.00 STAGE010 STAGE DOOR II, INC.           9/30/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08592 9/30/2018  6 STUTZMAN CT WATER MAIN EXTENSI 6,594.00 STAGE010 STAGE DOOR II, INC.           9/30/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08622 9/30/2018  1 STUTZMANS COUT PWS EXTENSION  32,055.00 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

401-3141-533-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-08629 9/30/2018  1 STUTZMANS PROJECT FYE 18 CO   31,211.00 CITYO005 CITY OF APOPKA                9/30/2018

401-3141-533-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-02513 12/29/2017  1 FORD F350 4X4 EXT CAB UTILITY 43,331.00 COGGI005 ASHBURY JAX FORD, LLC         12/29/2017

401-3161-533-4700         PRINTING SERVICES                       18-04921 4/26/2018  126 UTILITY BILLING               13,313.81 MUNIC005 MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION    4/26/2018

Page 2 of 3

268



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF APOPKA

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PURCHASE ORDER CARRY FORWARDS INTO FISCAL YEAR 2019

Account Description PO # PO Date

Prior 

Year 

Line Item Item Description Amount Vendor # Vendor Name First Enc Date

401-3171-535-5500         TRAINING                                18-03788 2/23/2018  1 Joseph/Tyler training         300.00 ROADM005 ROADMASTER DRIVERS SCHOOL     2/23/2018

401-3171-535-6300         IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BLDGS.          18-07539 8/7/2018  2 Zellwin Farms sewer meter     135.40 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                8/7/2018

401-3181-536-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-05107 5/3/2018  1 Keene Rd. Ashalt depression   1,000.00 MIDDL005 MIDDLESEX CORPORATION, THE    5/3/2018

401-3181-536-4600         REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG.& EQUIPMENT        18-07688 8/13/2018  1 blanket for asphalt           2,000.00 ORLAN015 ORLANDO PAVING CO             8/13/2018

401-3191-535-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-05063 4/30/2018  1 LS #077 350kW Generator       79,088.00 ZABAT005 ZABATT, INC.                  4/30/2018

401-3191-535-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-05063 4/30/2018  2 Change Order #1               2,860.00 ZABAT005 ZABATT, INC.                  9/30/2018

401-3191-535-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-06408 6/12/2018  1 LS #025 Control Panel         8,150.00 STACO005 STA CON, LLC                  6/12/2018

401-3191-535-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-06408 6/12/2018  2 LS #041 Control Panel         7,600.00 STACO005 STA CON, LLC                  6/12/2018

401-3191-535-6400         EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY                 18-07178 7/24/2018  1 LS #017 Pump Installation     10,749.00 MICHI005 MICHIGAN ST. PUMP & ELECTRIC M 7/24/2018

402-3210-534-4700         PRINTING SERVICES                       18-07749 8/17/2018  1 Recycle calendar magnet printi 4,246.00 MAGNE005 MAGNETIC ATTRACTION INC.      8/17/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-04065 3/12/2018  6 Grossenbacher Well 1 Design   127,535.00 REISS005 REISS ENGINEERING INC         3/12/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06126 5/24/2018  18 Potable Water Master Plan     6,362.00 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06126 5/24/2018  20 Potable Water Master Plan     5,118.00 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06126 5/24/2018  23 Potable Water Master Plan     25,788.33 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08270 9/11/2018  6 Change Order #1               4,609.33 ATLAN010 ATLANTIC CONCRETE & MECHANICAL 9/30/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08270 9/11/2018  7 Golden Gem Reclaim Pipe Instal 27,019.67 ATLAN010 ATLANTIC CONCRETE & MECHANICAL 9/11/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08271 9/11/2018  6 Well drilling Mt Plymouth     62,460.00 APPLI015 APPLIED DRILLING ENGINEERING  9/11/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08271 9/11/2018  8 Well drilling Mt Plymouth     24,984.00 APPLI015 APPLIED DRILLING ENGINEERING  9/11/2018

403-3113-533-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08271 9/11/2018  9 Well drilling Mt Plymouth     981,076.00 APPLI015 APPLIED DRILLING ENGINEERING  9/11/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 00129244 4/13/2016 Y 2 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BUILDI 14,250.00 ECOLO005 ECOLOGICAL CONSULTING SOLUTION 4/13/2016

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 00129244 4/13/2016 Y 3 IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.       6,047.00 ECOLO005 ECOLOGICAL CONSULTING SOLUTION 4/13/2016

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 17-05623 8/2/2017 Y 7 RWS Extension Ocoee Apopka Rd 35,081.40 PROVI005 PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION & DEVE 8/2/2017

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 17-05624 8/2/2017 Y 7 RWS Ext. Ph3 Pipe Purchase    80,192.55 HDSUP005 HD SUPPLY WATER WORKS, LTD.   8/2/2017

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 17-06572 9/29/2017 Y 1 Install Irr Well - NW Park    24,365.00 PROVI005 PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION & DEVE 9/29/2017

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 17-06575 9/29/2017 Y 1 NWRC Irrigation Pumps Purchase 110,000.00 BARNE015 BARNEY'S PUMPS                9/29/2017

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-00288 10/10/2017  1 O.C. Permits/ Keene Rd.       4,847.66 ORANG010 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 10/10/2017

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-03777 2/23/2018  1 M.O.T. Flag Operation Keene Rd 1,260.00 FLASH005 FLASH-RITE, INC.              2/23/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-03949 3/5/2018  1 Kenne Rd Repair-Geotech Serv  350.00 TERRA010 TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC.    3/5/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-04082 3/13/2018  4 Project No. 20170018          4,598.00 TETRA005 TETRA TECH INC.               3/13/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-06126 5/24/2018  17 Reclaimed Water Master Plan   6,362.00 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-06126 5/24/2018  19 Reclaimed Water Master Plan   5,118.00 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3115-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLD.                 18-06126 5/24/2018  22 Reclaimed Water Master Plan   29,511.34 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                00129754 5/25/2016 Y 30 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BUILDI 40,119.03 TETRA005 TETRA TECH INC.               5/25/2016

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                00129754 5/25/2016 Y 31 IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS      822,307.81 TETRA005 TETRA TECH INC.               5/25/2016

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                00129754 5/25/2016 Y 32 IMPROVEMENTS OTHER THAN BUILDI 872,930.89 TETRA005 TETRA TECH INC.               5/25/2016

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                17-02849 3/10/2017 Y 2 Engineering & Start Up        5,900.00 GARDN005 GARDNER DENVER, INC.          3/10/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                17-02849 3/10/2017 Y 3 Freight                       2,820.00 GARDN005 GARDNER DENVER, INC.          3/10/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                17-02849 3/10/2017 Y 4 Cast Iron Multistage Blowers  13,943.90 GARDN005 GARDNER DENVER, INC.          3/10/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                17-05851 8/18/2017 Y 18 Field Svc Full Day Start Up   3,978.00 HACHC005 HACH COMPANY                  8/18/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                17-05851 8/18/2017 Y 19 Field Svc Hach S.U. Travel    404.00 HACHC005 HACH COMPANY                  8/18/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-00510 10/20/2017  9 Pipe, Fittings & Accessories  35,009.98 FERGU005 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.    10/20/2017

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-04856 4/23/2018  23 Golden Gem Rd. RWM pipe&Fittin 952.00 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                4/23/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-04856 4/23/2018  24 Golden Gem Rd. RWM pipe&Fittin 13,661.23 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                4/23/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-05790 5/8/2018  1 Pipe & Valves                 7,059.00 COREM005 CORE & MAIN LP                5/8/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06126 5/24/2018  16 Wastewater Master Plan        6,362.00 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06126 5/24/2018  21 Wastewater Master Plan        42,335.33 WRIGH040 WRIGHT-PIERCE                 5/24/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06546 6/22/2018  1 Cruise Car Utility Vehicle    20,798.00 CRUIS005 CRUISE CAR, INC.              6/22/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-06896 7/5/2018  2 Retainage                     241,400.00 KOMLI005 KOMLINE-SANDERSON CORPORATION 7/5/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-07006 7/13/2018  2 Retainage                     25,485.00 KOMLI005 KOMLINE-SANDERSON CORPORATION 7/13/2018

403-3123-535-6300         IMPROVE OTHER THAN BLDGS                18-08287 9/13/2018  1 Lab Eqp for new testing WWTP  3,136.86 ENVIR005 ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS         9/13/2018

410-4200-542-5250         FUEL - AIRPORT                          18-08291 9/13/2018  1 Task 3                        1,149.62 FRSEN005 FRS ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION 9/13/2018

610-9950-515-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-04391 3/27/2018  2 Station St Prj Boundary Survey 350.60 SOUTH010 SOUTHEASTERN SURVEYING        3/27/2018

610-9950-515-3100         PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   18-04391 3/27/2018  3 Station St Prj Boundary Survey 896.00 SOUTH010 SOUTHEASTERN SURVEYING        3/27/2018

7,886,384.83Total 2018 Purchase Order Carry Overs

Page 3 of 3

269



   

  
Kevin Becotte 

 

 

Kevin Becotte is a proven leader with 28 years of local government experience having served the 

citizens of Pinellas County for the past 18 years in several senior leadership positions. His most 

recent position was Director of Utilities Engineering where he managed a $40 million annual 

capital improvement program. Prior to Pinellas County, Kevin previously served as the Director of 

Utilities for the City of Clearwater, the City Engineer for the City of Largo, and the Assistant City 

Engineer for the City of Delray Beach.  

 

Kevin has experience with successfully managing large workforce teams consisting of licensed 

professionals, technicians, skilled laborers as well as administrative and financial team members. 

At Pinellas County, he managed engineering teams with up to 100 employees, and operations and 

maintenance departments consisting of 90 to 500 employees. He is highly skilled in organizing 

work efforts, and he has been successful at strategically guiding teams with the mission of 

providing outstanding public service. 

 

Kevin received his Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Central 

Florida and a Master of Public Administration Degree from the University of South Florida as well 

as a Bachelor of Science Degree with a focus on Accounting from Franklin Pierce College. He is a 

registered Professional Engineer in the State of Florida since 1995, and is active in the Florida 

Engineering Society where he has served in various roles and as an officer on several state and 

local boards and committees. 

 

270



KEVIN J. BECOTTE, P.E.  

Page 1 of 5 

  

SUMMARY 

A skilled leader with 28 years of government experience in Engineering and Utilities management 

of which, 20 years were in management roles leading teams to successfully complete capital 

projects. Has experience with successfully managing workforce teams consisting of licensed 

professionals, technicians, skilled and unskilled laborers as well as administrative and financial 

team members. Highly skilled in organizing work efforts and assigning work based on knowledge, 

skills, and abilities. Has the proven leadership skills needed to deliver projects on schedule and 

within budget by using innovative technical and financial strategies to meet organizational 

challenges. Passionate about mentoring and training team members to help others grow in their 

careers as they navigate through the organization. Empowers team members to make decisions to 

deliver cost effective solutions, and promotes a culture focused on teamwork to deliver superior 

customer service. 

EXPERIENCE 

Pinellas County, Clearwater, FL 2000 – 2018 

Eighteen years serving the citizens of Pinellas County in several responsible Professional 

Engineering and Utilities Operations positions.  

Director of Utilities Engineering (2½ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Managed 28 employees responsible for planning, design, and construction of $40 million of

projects in the Utilities 2018 Capital Improvement Program.

 Provided engineering design services to Utilities with a focus on renewal and replacement to
support the Operations and Maintenance Divisions.

Accomplishments: 

 Reorganized the Engineering Division with a focus on Asset Management by creating two
planning sections and two production sections aligned to address horizontal and vertical assets.

 Partnered with local municipalities and assigned staff to perform outreach in order to better
serve the community.

 Initiated an Inflow & Infiltration flow monitoring program, and a sewer forcemain and air

release valve (ARV) condition assessment program.

 Completed the construction of several major forcemain projects.

Director of Engineering (1½ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Managed 100 employees responsible for planning, design, and construction of $85 million of
projects in the County’s 2016 Capital Improvement Program.

271



KEVIN J. BECOTTE, P.E. 

Page 2 of 5 

 Provide engineering design services to four operating departments including Public Works,
Utilities, Parks, and Solid Waste.

Accomplishments: 

 Reorganized the department and hired several Professional Engineers to fill strategic positions.

 Strengthened relationships with the operating departments by strategically organizing business
units assigned to assist with renewal and replacement of assets.

 Partnered with USF to initiate an Infiltration Study of the wastewater system.

Operations Manager (2½ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Managed 93 employees responsible for the operation of two Water Reclamation Facilities (33
MGD and 9 MGD), 300 wastewater pump stations, a Water Treatment and Pumping Facility,

and five water booster pump stations.

Accomplishments: 

 Renegotiated the reclaimed water wholesale purchase contract with the City of Clearwater.

 Coordinated the design for the relocation of the two points of connection with Tampa Bay
Water, the regional water supplier.

 Coordinated the renewal of a Bio-solids pelletizing contract with Synagro.

 Developed an RFP and finalized the contract for the private operation of the County’s fats, oil,

and grease (FOG) facility.

 Completed an assessment of the Indian Rocks Beach Sewer System to negotiate acquisition.

Interim Director of Utilities (1 ¾ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Performed executive management of six operating divisions (Finance, Customer Service,
Engineering, Facility Operations, General Maintenance, and Solid Waste) with 500 employees,

an operating budget of $200 million, and a six year capital budget of $400 million.

 Responsible for the operation of two Water Reclamation Facilities and a Water Treatment and
Pumping Facility; maintenance of over 3,500 miles of water, sewer and reclaimed water

pipelines; and operation of a 3,000 ton per day Waste to Energy facility with a permitted 75

Mega Watt capacity.

 Responsible for making presentations to the Board of County Commissioners.

Accomplishments: 

 Implemented a Backflow Fee to test and maintain backflows.

 Negotiated a Joint Project Agreement with Tampa Bay Water, the regional water supplier, to
jointly participate in the improvements to a 55+ year old Water Supply and Pumping Facility.

 Coordinated the repairs of a major 48” water main break two days before Christmas including

regular media updates.

272



KEVIN J. BECOTTE, P.E. 

Page 3 of 5 

Assistant Director of Utilities (1¾ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Responsible for the operations of the Utilities Department water and sewer operations

including oversight of two operating departments (General Maintenance and Operations) as

well as two service departments (Customer Services and Alternate Water).

 Responsible for contracts associated with the land management of a 12,500 acre parcel (ranch)
owned by the water system including wildlife management, pine straw and pine timber sales,

and an education center.

Accomplishments: 

 Completed an update of customer Fees and Charges that were last reviewed in 1987.

 Coordinated the transfer of easements for well field access to Tampa Bay Water, the regional
wholesale water supplier.

Division Engineer/Assistant Director of Utilities Engineering (3 ¼ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Assisted with the administration and management for Utilities Engineering including technical

and financial coordination of a six year $400 million Capital Improvement Program.

 Coordinated a Reclaimed Water expansion program with 12 projects totaling over $42 million.

 Managed the GIS and CAD as well as in-house design of water and sewer projects.

Accomplishments: 

 Implemented a top down Asset Management Program to identify the consequences and

likelihood of asset failure with the ultimate goal of balancing asset risk.

 Developed a sanitary sewer preventative maintenance program and completed a Capacity,
Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) report submitted to EPA in June 2006.

 Expanded the gravity sewer CIPP lining program.

 Initiated a 20 year renewal and replacement program for wastewater pump stations.

Division Director of Utilities General Maintenance (1½ years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 The General Maintenance Division has 175 employees comprising four sections and an

operating budget of $16 million.

 Responsible for the maintenance and repairs of the water, sewer, and reclaimed systems
consisting of 3,500 miles of pipelines.

Accomplishments: 

 Developed a Career Ladder opportunity for field staff with promotions based on skill levels.

 Reorganized the Locates team in response to changes implemented by Florida One Call.

 Created a special six person team to provide timely responses to the six contractors replacing
120 miles of galvanized water mains.

 Created the Employee of the Quarter award and nominated several employees as eventual
winners of the County Administrator’s Gold and Silver awards.

 Organized employee teams to bid and compete with contractors on construction projects.

273



KEVIN J. BECOTTE, P.E. 

Page 4 of 5 

Senior Engineer (3 years) 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Managed the expansion of the County's two reclaimed water distribution systems consisting of

eighteen projects ranging from $0.5 million to $13 million with a total value of $75 million.

 Represented the County Utility Department as the program coordinator for FDOT utility
relocation projects.

 Served as project manager for the Unidirectional Flushing Program, which included the
hydraulic modeling and flushing of over 1,750 miles of water distribution mains.

City of Clearwater, FL 1998 – 2000 

Director of Public Utilities 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Served a population of over 100,000 with an estimated 36,000 water and wastewater customers
with an operating budget of $34 million.

 Managed four divisions with 154 employees including a water system with 500 miles of water

mains and a daily flow of 15 MGD, and a wastewater system with 400 miles of gravity sewer

and force mains, 75 pump stations, and three advanced wastewater treatment plants with a total

capacity of 28.5 MGD and an average daily flow of 16 MGD.

Accomplishments: 

 Completed development of a 20-year Master Plan for a reclaimed water system expansion.

 Initiated a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study to model the wastewater collection system, and
evaluate wet and dry weather flows to determine areas needing improvements.

 Developed a $10 million-five year plan to renew and replace 25 pump stations.

 Initiated a rate study that included a rate structure evaluation to determine rate equity for utility
customers with emphasis on differences between residential and commercial/industrial

customers by evaluating the base rate and the consumption rate.

 Implemented an Industrial Pretreatment Program to permit categorical industrial discharges
into the wastewater system, and expanded this program to include a grease ordinance.

 Coordinated the design completion of a $9.4 million expansion for a 13.5 MGD wastewater
treatment facility, and a state of the art Laboratory Facility for water and wastewater

monitoring.

 Reorganized the Public Utilities Department and implemented team building programs such as

4/10 work weeks, self-directed work teams, and customer quality programs.

City of Largo, FL 1996 – 1998 

City Engineer  

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Performed project management for consultant designed projects, and site plan review for
developments within the City.

 Developed the Engineering operations budget as well as the Capital Improvement Program

budget for streets and drainage projects.

 Acted as the liaison with Pinellas County, Water Management District, FDOT, and other
agencies involved in cooperative projects with the City.

274



KEVIN J. BECOTTE, P.E. 

Page 5 of 5 

 Made detailed presentations to the City Commission and tracked projects by preparing weekly,

monthly, and annual reports.

Accomplishments: 

 Served as the program manager during the design phase for the downtown district
improvements, which included projects totaling over $10 million consisting of a major

drainage collection system and pond, and widening of a State road.

 Developed minimum construction standards and managed multiple engineering capital projects
including the County’s first Alum stormwater treatment pond and the City’s first mast arm

traffic signal.

City of Delray Beach, FL  1992 - 1996 

Assistant City Engineer/Chief Design Engineer (2 years) 

Civil Engineer I & II (2 years)  

Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Managed the in-house engineering design group and provided project management and design
of water and sewer systems and various other Public Works projects.

 Evaluated project scope, scheduled site surveys, performed engineering calculations, designed
site plans, prepared preliminary cost estimates, applied for permits, and completed construction

specifications required to provide bid ready sets of construction plans and contract documents.

Accomplishments: 

 Completed several major projects as the Chief Design Engineer including a $4.5 million
Downtown Drainage project requiring extensive modeling for the Water Management District,

and a $2.6 million widening of a minor arterial road using FDOT standards.

EDUCATION 

 Master of Public Administration University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida 

 Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida 

 Bachelor of Science, Accounting Franklin Pierce College, Rindge, New Hampshire 

PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATIONS AND AFFILIATIONS 

 State of Florida Professional Engineer (48800)

 Florida Engineering Society (FES),
o Pinellas Chapter Past President

o Pinellas Chapter State Director

o Florida Professional Engineer’s in Government (FPEG) – Treasurer/Secretary

 Florida Water Environment Association (FWEA), Committee Chair

 NSPE, ASCE, AWWA, WEF

AWARDS 

 2007 Government Engineer of the Year (Florida Engineering Society Pinellas Chapter) 

 2008 Engineer of the Year (Florida Engineering Society Pinellas Chapter) 

275


	Top
	1. 02-06-19 CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 1/16/19
	CC 01-16-19 Min.docx

	1. 02-06-19 - CC - Presentation -Apopka Fire Department Grant
	Apopka Fire Department $32,702.25 Grant Approval 2018-2019.pdf

	2. 02-06-19 - CC - Presentation - Wellness program
	1. 02-06-19 - CC - Consent - FIN - Blanket Purchase Orders
	Blanket Purchase Orders - 02.06.19.docx

	2. 02-06-19 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Amendment #1 for Contract #WS1136
	Inmate Contract W1136 Renewal Staff Report.docx
	W1136 Amendment 1 Blank for sigs.pdf

	3. 02-06-19 - CC - Consent - Purchasing Card &amp; E-Payables
	Staff Report - Synovus Purchasing Card and E-Payables 02-06-19.docx

	4. 02-06-19 - CC -Consent - Alcohol sales approval
	Recreation - Alcohol Sales Staff Report Template.docx

	1. 02-06-19 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Fairfield Inn &amp; Self-Storage
	1 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage FDP 2-06-2019.docx
	2 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage FDP Full Plan Set.pdf
	3 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage FDP Elevations.pdf
	4 Farish Special Exception  Site Plan 12 13 16.pdf

	2. 02-06-19 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan/Plat - Vista Reserve
	1 Vista Reserve FDP Plat amendment CC 2 06 19.docx
	2 Vista Reserve FDP and plat amendment.pdf

	3. 02-06-19 - CC -Business - Placeholder Fire Department Stryker
	FD - Stryker Agreements.docx
	Stryker Flex Financial - 08-29-2017.pdf
	Stryker Flex Financial - 10-12-2017.pdf

	1. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2702 - Second Read - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - Construesse USA Inc
	1 Construesse FLU CC2 2-6-2019.docx
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2702.docx

	2. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2705 - Second Read - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - Uebel/Acevedo
	1. Uebel CC1 2-6-2019.docx
	2. ORDINANCE NO 2705.docx

	3. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2706 - Second Read - Change of Zoning - Eubel/Acevedo
	1. Uebel RZ CC2 2-6-2019.docx
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2706.docx

	4. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2690 - First Read - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Hamrick
	1 Hamrick FLU CC2 2-6-2019.docx
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2690.docx

	5. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2709 - First Read - PUD Master Plan Amendment - Mid-Florida Logistics Park
	1 Mid Florida Logistics Park PUD Master Plan amendment - ZON - CC 02 06 19.docx
	2  Ordinance 2709 - Mid-Florida Logistics Park PUD Amendment.docx
	3 Mid-FL PUD Master Plan Amendment.pdf

	6. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2710 - First Read - Vacate - City of Apopka - Public ROW
	1 Emerson Point Ph. II - ROW Vacate - Staff Report CC 2.6.2019.docx
	2 Ord 2710 - Emerson Point Ph. II - ROW - Vacate Ord.docx

	7. 02-06-19 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2712 - First Read - Annexation - City of Apopka
	1 3251 Harry Street Annexation - Staff Report - CC 2-6-2019.docx
	2 Ord 2712 - 3251 Harry Street - Annexation.docx

	8. 02-06-19 - CC - Resolution 2019-03
	02.06.19 Budget Amendment #4 - Staff Report.docx
	02.06.19 Budget Amendment #4 - Resolution 2019-03.docx
	02.06.19 Budget Amendment #4 - Exhibit A.pdf
	02.06.19 Budget Amendment #4 - Exhibit B - PO Rollover.pdf

	1. 02-06-19 - CC - City Council Reports -Girl Scouts - Commissioner Nolan
	1. 02-06-19 - CC - Public Services Director - Kevin Becotte
	Kevin Becotte Bio 2019.pdf
	Resume - DirectorPS - Becotte, Kevin 02-06-19.pdf

	Bottom

